HMIS Data
Standards:
HMIS Data
Dictionary

# **Contents**

1.	HMIS Data Dictionary Overview	5
Introd	uction	5
HMIS (	Concepts and Terms	6
Data e	element structure	7
Exhibit	t 1 – 1 Federal Funding Sources Relation to HMIS Project Types	11
Exhibit	t 1 – 2 Federal Partner Grant Programs, Eligible Components/Activities and HMIS Project Types	12
2.	Project Descriptor Data Elements	14
2.1	Organization Identifiers	15
2.2	Project Identifiers	15
2.3	Continuum of Care Code	16
2.4	Project Type	17
2.5	Method for Tracking Emergency Shelter Utilization	19
2.6	Federal Partner Funding Sources	21
2.7	Bed and Unit Inventory Information	23
2.8	Site Information - OPTIONAL	25
2.9	Target Population - OPTIONAL	26
3.	Universal Data Elements	27
3.1	Name	28
3.2	Social Security Number	28
3.3	Date of Birth	29
3.4	Race	30
3.5	Ethnicity	31
3.6	Gender	31
3.7	Veteran Status	32
3.8	Disabling Condition	33
3.9	Residence Prior to Project Entry	34
3.10	Project Entry Date	35
3.11	Project Exit Date	36
3.12	Destination	37
3.13	Personal ID	39
3.14	Household ID	40
3.15	Relationship to Head of Household	41
3.16	Client Location	42

3.17	Length of Time on Street, in an Emergency Shelter, or Safe Haven	. 43
4.	Program-Specific Data Elements	. 44
4.1	Housing Status	. 46
4.2	Income and Sources	. 47
4.3	Non-Cash Benefits	. 51
4.4	Health Insurance	. 53
4.5	Physical Disability	. 55
4.6	Developmental Disability	. 56
4.7	Chronic Health Condition	. 58
4.8	HIV/AIDS	. 59
4.9	Mental Health Problem	. 61
4.10	Substance Abuse	. 62
4.11	Domestic Violence	. 64
4.12	Contact	. 65
4.13	Date of Engagement	. 66
4.14	Services Provided	. 67
4.15	Financial Assistance Provided	. 73
4.16	Referrals Provided	. 75
4.17	Residential Move-In Date	. 78
4.18	Housing Assessment Disposition	. 79
4.19	Housing Assessment at Exit	. 80
PATH R	EQUIRED ELEMENTS	. 81
4.20	PATH Status	. 81
4.21	Connection with SOAR	. 82
RHY RE	QUIRED ELEMENTS	. 83
4.22	RHY - BCP Status	. 83
4.23	Sexual Orientation	. 84
4.24	Last Grade Completed	. 85
4.25	School Status	. 86
4.26	Employment Status	. 87
4.27	General Health Status	. 89
4.28	Dental Health Status	. 89
4.29	Mental Health Status	. 90
4.30	Pregnancy Status	. 91
4.31	Formerly a Ward of Child Welfare/Foster Care Agency	. 92

4.32	Formerly a Ward of Juvenile Justice System	93
4.33	Young Person's Critical Issues	95
4.34	Referral Source	97
4.35	Commercial Sexual Exploitation	99
4.36	Transitional, Exit-care or Aftercare Plans and Actions	100
4.37	Project Completion Status	102
4.38	Family Reunification Achieved	103
HOPWA	REQUIRED ELEMENTS	104
4.39	Medical Assistance	104
RHSP RE	QUIRED ELEMENT	105
4.40	Worst Housing Situation	105
VA REQ	UIRED ELEMENTS	106
4.41	Veteran's Information	106
4.42	Percent of AMI (SSVF Eligibility)	109
4.43	Last Permanent Address	109
Exhibit 4	1-1 HHS:PATH Program Specific Element Visibility – Collection Requirements	111
Exhibit 4	1-2 HHS:RHY Program Specific Element Visibility – Collection Requirements	112
Exhibit 4	1-3 HUD: CoC Program Specific Element Visibility – Collection Requirements	114
Exhibit 4	1-4 HUD: ESG Program Specific Element Visibility – Collection Requirements	115
Exhibit 4	1-5 HUD:HOPWA Program Specific Element Visibility – Collection Requirements	116
Exhibit 4	1-6 VA Program Specific Element Visibility – Collection Requirements	117
5.	Metadata Elements	118
5.1	Date Created	118
5.2	Date Updated	119
5.3	Data Collection Stage	119
5.4	Information Date	120
5.5	Project Identifier	121
5.6	Project Entry ID	122
5.7	User Identifier	123
Exhibit 5	5-1 Metadata Element Summary	125

## **Revision History**

Date	Version	Description
5/2014	2	First Release
08/2014	2.1	Modifications to data elements 2.4 Project Type (field changes), 2.6 Federal Partner Funding Sources (response corrections), 2.7 Bed and Unit Inventory Information (numbering of fields corrected), 2.8 Site Information (address fields added), 3.17 Length of Time on Street, in an Emergency Shelter, or Safe Haven (field changes), 4.13 Date of Engagement (project applicability now includes ES – nbn), 4.17 Residential Move-In Date (information date field added), 4.41 Veteran's Information (numbering of fields corrected), 4.43 Last Permanent Address (element name changed), 5.6 Project Entry ID (removed Zip Code of Last Permanent Address from list of elements), all elements (XML and CSV rows corrected/added), hyperlinks throughout document updated to HUDExchange.info where needed, and ESG required element chart now shows element 4.19 is required for Homelessness Prevention instead of RRH.

#### 1. HMIS Data Dictionary Overview

#### Introduction

A Homeless Management Information System (HMIS) is the information system designated by a local Continuum of Care (CoC) to comply with the requirements of CoC Program interim rule 24 CFR 578. It is a locally-administered data system used to record and analyze client, service and housing data for individuals and families who are homeless or at risk of homelessness. HMIS is a valuable resource because of its capacity to integrate and unduplicate data across projects in a community. Aggregate HMIS data can be used to understand the size, characteristics, and needs of the homeless population at multiple levels: project, system, local, state, and national. The Annual Homeless Assessment Report (AHAR) is HUD's annual report that provides Congress with detailed data on individuals and households experiencing homelessness across the country each year. This report could not be written if communities were not able to provide HUD with reliable, aggregate data on the clients they serve.

In 2010 the U.S. Interagency Council on Homelessness (USICH) affirmed HMIS as the official method of measuring outcomes in its *Opening Doors: Federal Strategic Plan to Prevent and End Homelessness*. Since then many of the federal agencies that provide McKinney-Vento Act and other sources of funding for services to specific homeless populations have joined together and are working with HUD to coordinate the effort.

HMIS is now used by the federal partners and their respective programs in the effort to end Homelessness, which include:

- U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (HHS)
- U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)
- U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs

The HMIS Data Standards (published in the 2014 HMIS Data Dictionary and HMIS Data Manual) provide communities with baseline data collection requirements developed by each of these federal partners.

HUD published the first 2004 HMIS Data and Technical Standards on July 30, 2004 and these served as the foundation for software developers in constructing HMIS applications. In March 2010, HUD updated the Data Standards (March 2010 HMIS Data Standards), primarily to reflect data collection requirements for the Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Rehousing Program (HPRP). HUD, in collaboration with its federal partners, is updating the HMIS Data Standards again with the release of this HMIS Data Dictionary and HMIS Data Manual. Both documents will supersede the previously released HMIS Data Standards.

HMIS systems must be able to collect all of the data elements defined in the HMIS Data Dictionary, support system logic identified in this document, and ensure that data collection and the visibility of data elements is appropriate to the project type and federal funding source for any given project.

For the 2014 release of the HMIS Data Standards, HUD has changed both the format and the contents of the information. Rather than compiling all the information into one document HUD is releasing a series of documents designed for specific audiences. They are:

- HMIS Data Dictionary The HMIS Data Dictionary is designed for HMIS vendors and HMIS Lead Agency system administrators to understand all of the data elements required in an HMIS, data collection and function of each required element and the specific use of each element by the appropriate federal partner. The HMIS Data Dictionary should be the source for HMIS software programming.
- 2. HMIS Data Manual The HMIS Data Manual is designed for HMIS Lead Agency system administrators, Continuum of Care leaders, and HMIS users. The Manual lists and defines data elements to be collected in an HMIS and provides definitions and program use context for data collection. Identical data elements are presented in the Data Dictionary and Data Manual but the readership and context is different.
- 3. **HMIS Program Manuals** A series of program manuals will be released prior to October 1, 2014. These manuals will enable an HMIS to be used across all of the federal partners identified in the Data Dictionary and the Data Manual. The Manual will provide HMIS Leads, HMIS vendors, CoCs, and end users with all of the information they need on each federal partners specific programs and program components.

On or before October 1, 2014 all HMIS software must comply with these data standards established within this Data Dictionary. HUD expects all CoC's to begin using HMIS with the elements contained in these standards on October 1, 2014. Modified reporting requirements will be published to manage the transition period of data collection between data standard versions. By October 1, 2015 all reporting to each of the federal partners identified in this document is expected to be generated using HMIS based on the data elements outlined in this document.

#### **HMIS Concepts and Terms**

#### Continuum of Care (CoC) is used multiple ways:

- 1. Continuum of Care and Continuum means the group organized to carry out the responsibilities required under the CoC Program Interim Rule (24 CFR Part 578) and is comprised of representatives of organizations, including nonprofit homeless providers, victim service providers, faith-based organizations, governments, businesses, advocates, public housing agencies, school districts, social service providers, mental health agencies, hospitals, universities, affordable housing developers, and law enforcement, and organizations that serve homeless and formerly homeless persons to the extent that these groups are represented within the geographic area and are available to participate.
- 2. CoC Program refers to the federal funding source which provides housing and/or service grant dollars
- 3. CoC Project refers to a distinct unit of an organization, which may or may not be funded by HUD or the federal partners, that provides services and/or lodging for the homeless and is identified by the continuum as part of its service system. [Note: a project funded by the CoC may be referred to then as a "CoC program project"]

**HMIS User** means the individual who uses or enters data in an HMIS or a comparable database approved by the CoC.

**HMIS Lead** means the entity designated by the Continuum of Care in accordance with the <u>HMIS</u> <u>Proposed Rule</u><sup>1</sup> (24 CFR Part 580) to operate the Continuum's HMIS on the Continuum's behalf.

**HMIS System Administrator** means the individual(s) whose job it is to manage the HMIS implementation at the local level: enrolling programs and managing appropriate use, supporting users through connection to or direct provision of user training, and overseeing system setup.

#### Data element structure

Every data element required by HUD and the Federal partners to be stored within an HMIS is specified in this document. The following format is used to describe each data element:

Element Name	The name of the element.
Field & Response(s) #	The field name and any response options associated with the field.
	Most elements contain responses of "client doesn't know" and "client refused".  These response options are clarification of the former Don't Know and Refused categories to indicate that it is the client who doesn't know or refused.
	Data not collected has been added as a response option in this HMIS Data Dictionary. It is not a response option necessary in every system or in every element. However, the element is required for use by any HMIS system which requires a response to an element before allowing the user to move forward in the system. Adding the response option of "data not collected" enables a user who did not collect or simply does not have the information to enter a response that does not present a false answer. HMIS systems which require entry of any element for the system to progress must implement the "data not collected" response for all elements that require a response. [System Note: data not collected will equate to missing data or null values as appropriate for transfer and reporting purposes.]
Dependent # to Response #	Dependent fields and dependent response options identify the Field and Response option to which they are dependent.
Element Type	The type of data element (project descriptor, universal, program-specific or metadata) which indicates the level at which data are collected, whether they apply to all funding sources, and their relationship to other data.
	Project Descriptor Data Elements are the required project level elements initially entered at the setup stage of the project within an HMIS that specifically identify the organization, project name, continuum(s) in which the project operates type of project, bed and unit inventory for residential projects, and funding sources. In systems that are able to generate Housing

7

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> As of May 2014, the HMIS Rule is not in effect. HUD anticipates publishing the final HMIS Rule in late 2014 and will give communities time to come into compliance with the rule.

Inventory Count (HIC) data, there are additional data elements relevant to that purpose. 2. Universal Data Elements are client level data elements required for collection by all projects participating in HMIS, regardless of project type or funding source. 3. Program-Specific Data Elements are client level elements required by a specific federal program or program component. 4. Metadata Elements are data about data elements documenting required metadata collection. Project Type Project type(s) refers to element 2.4 Project Type and identifies the project type Applicability required to collect the data element. Funder: Program – The specific federal funder (HUD, HHS, VA) and program (e.g. CoC, HOPWA, PATH, Component Requested RHY) and component (e.g. CoC-Transitional Housing; PATH-Street Outreach; RHY-Basic Center Program) for which the data element is required to be collected. All Programs All Components The chart uses the program and component abbreviations as identified in Exhibit 1-2. The chart is coded as follows: White cells (e.g. HUD:CoC HP below) indicate the element is to be collected for that program and program component. Black cells (e.g. HUD:CoC PSH below) indicate the element is not required to be collected for that program and program component. Cells grayed (e.g. HHS:PATH – SO below) indicates the element is not required to be collected on October 1, 2014 for that program and program component. The element will be required in the future when the federal partner receives OMB approval on their new reporting format; providers may elect to collect data early. Component Funder: Program HUD:CoC ΗP PSH SO SSO RRH TH ES – nbn **HUD:ESG** ES – e/e ΗP RRH SO HUD:HOPWA H/M НΙ РΗ PHP STH STRMU ΤН PSH HUD:HUD/VASH **HUD:RHSP** RA HHS:RHY BCP-es TLP BCP-p MGH SOP SO HHS:PATH SSO VA:HCHV EΗ VA: GPD ТН ΗP VA:SSVF RRH Data Collected About The client(s) for whom an element response is required (e.g. Head of Household, Adults, Children, etc.). Data may be collected about a wide group (e.g. all household members) but data reporting will be specified on the persons required to have the data collected about.

#### Collection Point

The point(s) at which the data must be able to be collected in an HMIS. In addition to specifying the stage of data collection the collection point is also recorded via metadata (element 5.3).

**Record creation** – Indicates the element is required to be collected when the client record is created. Elements collected at record creation should have one and only one value for each client in an HMIS. Data are collected and entered into the HMIS responses must be reviewed for accuracy at each project entry and edited as necessary to make corrections or to improve data quality.

**Project entry** – Indicates the element is required to be collected at every project entry. Elements collected at project entry must have an *Information Date* that matches the client's *Project Entry Date* and be recorded via 5.3 *Data Collection Stage* of 'project entry.' Information must be accurate as of the *Project Entry Date*. There should be one and only one record with a Data Collection Stage of 'project entry' for each relevant data element for any given project entry.

Data may be edited by users associated with the project to correct errors or omissions; such edits will not change the data collection stage associated with the record.

**Update** – Indicates the element may be collected and entered into HMIS at multiple points during an enrollment in order to track changes over time. The system must be able to support a theoretically unlimited number of update records per enrollment. Each 'update' requires the creation of a new record with a distinct *Information Date*. The *Information Date* should reflect the date on which the information is collected and/or the date for which the information is relevant for reporting purposes. Information must be accurate as of the *Information Date*, regardless of when it is actually collected or entered into HMIS.

Data may be edited by users associated with the project to correct errors or omissions; such edits will change neither the data collection stage nor the information date unless it is explicitly change by the user.

**Annual assessment** – Is a specialized subset of the 'update' collection point. The annual assessment is to be recorded no more than 30 days before or after the anniversary of the client's *Project Entry Date*, regardless of the date of the most recent 'update' or 'annual assessment', if any [annually]. Information must be accurate as of the *Information Date*.

For HUD-funded programs and HUD reporting purposes, the implementation of 'annual assessment' as a data collection stage by vendors is mandatory; the data collection stage may not be inferred from the Information Date, although the field should have an *Information Date* recorded with it. In order to be considered reportable to HUD as an annual assessment, data must be stored with a *Data Collection Stage* of 'annual assessment.'

There should be one and only one record for each data element annually with a

	Data Collection Stage recorded as 'annual assessment' associated with any given client and project entry ID within the 60 day period surrounding the anniversary of the client's Project Entry Date. Regardless of whether or not the responses have changed since project entry or the previous annual assessment, a new record must be created for each subsequent annual assessment such that it is possible to view a history, by date, of the values for each data element.  Data may be edited by users associated with the project to correct errors or omissions; such edits will change neither the data collection stage nor the
	information date unless they are explicitly altered by the user.  Project exit – Indicates the element is required to be collected at every project exit. Elements collected at project exit must have an Information Date that matches the client's Project Exit Date and a Data Collection Stage of 'project exit.' Information must be accurate as of the Project Exit Date. There should be one and only one record with a Data Collection Stage of 'project exit' for each relevant data element for any given project exit.  Data may be edited by users associated with the project to correct errors or omissions; such edits will not change the data collection stage or the information
System Logic	Logically required data collection or system structure information for HMIS software development purposes.
Other System Issues	Information on rationale, conditions, constraints, etc. that may be applicable to a specific element and are important for HMIS software development purposes.
XML	XML element in XML Specifications where the data standard element is located.
CSV	Primary file in CSV Specifications where the data standard element is located.
_	Documentation of changes to the element from the 2010 HMIS Data Standards notice to the 2014 Data Dictionary.

### Exhibit 1 - 1 Federal Funding Sources Relation to HMIS Project Types

This exhibit illustrates the project types (element 2.4) that may be associated with each HMIS Federal Partner Program depending on the component/activity funded.

Project Types (Element 2.4) Funder Program Sources	ES	тн	PH:PSH (disability required for entry)	Street Outreach	Services Only	Other	Safe Haven	PH: Housing Only	PH: Housing With Services (no disability required for entry)	Day Shelter	Homeless Prevention	PH:RRH	CA
U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development (H	IUD)												
HUD-Continuum of Care Program (CoC)		х	х	х	х		х	х			х	х	х
HUD - Emergency Solutions Grants Program (ESG)	Х			х						х	х	x	х
HUD-Rural Housing Stability Assistance Program (RHSP)													
HUD-Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA)	х	х	х		х						х		
HUD-Veterans Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH)			х										
U.S. Department of Health & Human Services								•	•				
HHS-Runaway and Homeless Youth Programs (RHY)	х	х		х	х						х		
HHS-Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH)				х	х								
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs													
VA-Grant and Per Diem Program (GPD)		х											
VA-Supportive Services for Veteran Families (SSVF)											х	х	
VA-VA Community Contract Emergency Housing (HCHV/EH)	х												

Project type abbreviations: ES = Emergency Shelter, TH = Transitional Housing, PH = Permanent Housing, PSH = Permanent Supportive Housing, RRH = Rapid Re-Housing, CA = Coordinated Assessment

### Exhibit 1 - 2 Federal Partner Grant Programs, Eligible Components/Activities and HMIS Project Types

This table serves as a source reference for:

- 1. Identification of all HMIS Federal Partner programs and components use of HMIS.
- 2. Identification of the Program and Program Component/Activity Abbreviations used throughout the Data Dictionary.
- 3. Identification of the HMIS Project Type [element 2.4] required association with each Component/Activity.

Grant/Program	Component/Activity	HMIS PROJECT TYPE							
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD)									
	Homelessness Prevention (HP)	Homelessness Prevention							
	Permanent Supportive Housing <b>(PSH)</b> [Includes CoC - Shelter Plus Care (S+C) and Supportive Housing Program(SHP)  – permanent housing with active funding and/or use requirements]	PH: Permanent Supportive Housing							
	Rapid Re- Housing (RRH)	PH: Rapid Re-Housing							
Continuum of Care for the	Supportive Services Only (SSO)	Services Only (unless Street outreach is funded then Street Outreach)							
Homeless (CoC)	Transitional Housing (TH) [Includes CoC SHP – transitional housing with active funding and/or use requirements]	Transitional Housing							
	Safe Haven (SH)	Safe Haven							
	SRO [20 year use requirement]	PH: Permanent Supportive Housing or PH: Housing Only (depending on whether services are provided).							
Emergency Solutions Grants	Emergency Shelter (ES) – Entry/Exit (ES-e/e) OR Night-by-Night (ES-nbn) [Includes ESG – Transitional Shelter (Housing)]	Emergency Shelter (Transitional Shelter = Transitional Housing program type, reported under Emergency Shelter)							
(ESG)	Homelessness Prevention (HP)	Homelessness Prevention							
	Rapid Re-Housing (RRH)	PH: Rapid Re-Housing							
	Street Outreach (SO)	Street Outreach							

Grant/Program	Component/Activity	HMIS PROJECT TYPE			
	Hotel/Motel (H/M)	Emergency Shelter			
	Housing Information (HI)	Services Only			
	Permanent Housing (PH)	PH: Permanent Supportive Housing			
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS (HOPWA)	Permanent Housing Placement (PHP)	Services Only			
Fersons with AIDS (HOPWA)	Short Term Housing (STH)	Emergency Shelter			
	Short Term Rent, Mortgage Utility Assistance (STRMU)	Homelessness Prevention			
	Transitional Housing (TH)	Transitional Housing			
HUD/VASH (H/V)	Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH)	PH: Permanent Supportive Housing			
Rural Housing Stability Assistance Program (RHSP)	Rural Assistance (RA)	Undetermined at time of Data Standards Release			
U.S. Department of Health and Hu	man Services (HHS)				
Administration for Children and Far	nilies (ACYF) Family and Youth Services Bureau (FYSB)				
	Basic Center Program (BCP)	es = Emergency Shelter			
	Emergency Shelter (BCP-es) OR Prevention (BCP-p)	p=Homelessness Prevention			
Runaway and Homeless Youth	Maternal Group Home (MGH)	Transitional Housing			
(RHY)	Street Outreach Program (SOP)	Street Outreach			
	Transitional Living Program (TLP)	Transitional Housing			
	Demonstration Programs (D)	Undetermined at time of Data Standards Release			
Substance Abuse and Mental Healt	h Services Administration <b>(SAMHSA)</b>				
Projects for Assistance in	Street Outreach (SO)	Street Outreach			
Transition from Homelessness (PATH)	Supportive Services (SSO)	Services Only			
	(VA) *Participation in HMIS is not required as part of a funding requirement except Data Elements and universal Data Elements in order to facilitate completion of the HIC				
	Community Contract Emergency Housing (HCHV/EH)*	Emergency Shelter			
Health Care for Homeless	Community Contract Residential Treatment Program (HCHV/RT)*	Emergency Shelter			
Veterans (HCHV)	Domiciliary Care (HCHV/DOM)*	Emergency Shelter			
	VA Community Contract Safe Haven Program (HCHV/SH)*	Safe Haven			
MA Fundad Transitional Henri	Grant and Per Diem Program (GPD)*	Transitional Housing			
VA Funded Transitional Housing	Compensated Work Therapy Transitional Residence (CWT/TR)*	Transitional Housing			
Supportive Services for Veteran Families (SSVF)	Homelessness Prevention (HP) OR Rapid Re-Housing (RRH)  HP = Homelessness Prevention RRH = PH:Rapid Re-Housing				

#### 2. Project Descriptor Data Elements

Project descriptor data elements are intended to identify the organization, specific project and project details to which an individual client record in an HMIS is associated. The project descriptors are generally managed in an HMIS by a system administrator, not a user. They are created at initial new project setup within the HMIS and are intended to be updated, as needed, on a regular basis by the system administrator, no less than once annually. If data within project descriptor data elements are able to be entered or updated by a user then the HMIS system administrator must have oversight and review ability.

This section describes the data to be recorded in HMIS for each project descriptor data element and its relation to each project entering data. The project descriptor data elements create a basis for identifying the organization, project, project type and federal partner funder(s). Correct use of the 2.4 Project Type and 2.6 Funding Sources data elements will help assure that projects are identified for correct visibility and are able to generate reports required for each of the federal partners as reporting parameters will be based off of one or both of these elements.

The following Project Descriptor Data Elements are not optional:

- **2.1** Organization Identifiers
- **2.2** Project Identifiers
- **2.3** Continuum of Care Code
- **2.4** Project Type
- 2.5 Method for Tracking Emergency Shelter Utilization
- **2.6** Federal Partner Funding Sources
- **2.7** Bed and Unit Inventory Information

HUD has removed the requirement for the annual HUD Housing Inventory Count (HIC) to be completed utilizing exported data from the HMIS. Therefore, the elements necessary for the completion of the HIC (2.8 and 2.9) are shown here as optional elements. An HMIS may continue to provide the capacity to generate the HIC from an HMIS and CoCs may continue to utilize that capacity should they elect. The optional project descriptor data elements are designed to capture information on residential continuum projects which include: emergency shelters, transitional housing, safe havens, and all forms of permanent housing.

The following Project Descriptor Data Elements are optional:

- 2.8 Site Information Optional
- 2.9 Target Population Optional

## 2.1 Organization Identifiers

Element Name	Organization Identifiers
Field & Response(s) 1	Organization ID – auto generate
Field & Response(s) 2	Organization Name
Element Type	Project Descriptor
Project Type Applicability	AII
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	All organizations
Collection Point	Initial HMIS project setup, reviewed/updated no less than annually
System Logic	An Organization ID must be assigned to each project via a system generated number or code. Each organization must receive a distinct identifier that is consistently associated with that organization.  Each organization must also be able to be associated with one or more projects.  The name of the organization must be captured in text within the HMIS.
Other System Issues	An HMIS must allow the HMIS Lead to activate and deactivate an organization.  An HMIS application may permit the creation of a common name field more familiar to users for use within the application while retaining the legal name for use in reporting.
XML	<organization></organization>
CSV	Organization
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Combined two elements into one (Organization ID and Organization Name).

# 2.2 Project Identifiers

Element Name	Project Identifiers
Field & Response(s) 1	Project ID – auto generate
Field & Response(s) 2	Project Name
Element Type	Project Descriptor
Project Type	All projects
Applicability	
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	All projects
Collection Point	Initial HMIS project setup, reviewed/updated no less than annually
System Logic	A Project ID must be assign to each project via a system generated number or
	code. Each project must receive a distinct identifier that is consistently associated
	with that project.
	Each project must also be able to be associated with an organization.

	The name of the project must be captured in text within the HMIS.
Other System Issues	An HMIS must allow the HMIS Lead to activate and deactivate a project.  An HMIS application may permit the creation of a common name element more familiar to users for use within the application while retaining the legal name for use in reporting.
XML	<project></project>
CSV	Project
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Combined two elements into one (Project ID and Project Name).

### 2.3 Continuum of Care Code

Element Name	Continuum of Care Code
Field & Response(s) 1	Continuum Code - HUD-assigned CoC codes for the project location
Element Type	Project Descriptor
Project Type Applicability	All projects
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	All projects that serve clients
Collection Point	Initial HMIS project setup, reviewed/updated no less than annually
System Logic	Collect once at initial setup. System stores collected CoC codes and retains for historical purposes. Allow edits if changes are made to the CoC or corrections for data entry error; retain the original affiliation only as necessary for reporting.
Other System Issues	The system must allow for multiple codes selected per project. A code for every geographic area in which the project operates must be allowed.
	If the system creates defaults, they should be set as the code for the CoC in which the project is located.
	Projects may be funded to provide for housing and/or services to clients residing in only one CoC (e.g. CoC: Transitional Housing), or they may be funded for housing and/or services across multiple CoCs (e.g. VA: SSVF). The CoC codes selected for the project must be all of the codes allowed under the regulations of the federal funding partner.
XML	<projectcoc></projectcoc>
CSV	ProjectCoC
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	None

# 2.4 Project Type

Element Name	Project Type						
Field & Response(s) 1	Continuum	n Project					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 2	Project Typ	pe					
	1	Emergency Shelter					
	2	Transitional Housing					
	3	PH - Permanent Supportive Housing (disability required for entry)					
	4	Street Outreach					
	5	RETIRED					
	6	Services Only					
	7	Other					
	8	Safe Haven					
	9	PH – Housing Only					
	10	PH – Housing with Services (no disability required for entry)					
	11	Day Shelter					
	12	Homelessness Prevention					
	13	PH - Rapid Re-Housing					
	14	Coordinated Assessment					
Dependent A –	_	Only for "Project Type"					
Dependent to Field &	Affiliated with a residential project						
Response(s) 2	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Dependent B –		Affiliated with a residential project"					
Dependent to Dependent A	Project ID(	s) of residential project(s) affiliated with SSO					
Element Type	Project Des	scriptor					
Project Type	All projects						
Applicability	All projects						
Funder: Program –	All Progran	ns					
Component Requested	All Compor						
Data Collected About	All projects	5					
Collection Point	Initial HMI	S project setup, reviewed/updated no less than annually					
System Logic	Collect onc	e at initial setup. System stores collected project type and retains for					
	historical p	ourposes. Allow updates if changes or corrections for data entry error.					
	A project c	an only have one project type assigned					
	A project c	an only have one project type assigned.					
	A project must be able to identify multiple affiliated residential projects if "y						
	Dependent						
Other System Issues	A continuu	m project refers to all projects within the Continuum of Care that provide					

housing and/or services for homeless persons. A continuum project is not limited to those projects funded by HUD and should include all of the federal partner projects and all other federally or non-federally funded projects functioning within the continuum.

General rules of project typing:

- 1. A project is to be assigned a type based on the lodging or service it is providing.
- 2. If a project has more than one residential project type, each type must be set up in HMIS as a separate project. (For example, an emergency shelter and a transitional housing project must be set up as two separate projects in HMIS, even if there is a single funding source for both).
- 3. A residential project that is funded under one or more separate grants to provide supportive services to 100% of clients of the residential project may be set up as a single project with the appropriate residential project type. All federal funding sources must be identified in 2.6 Federal Partner Funding Sources.
- 4. A project that provides street outreach must be typed "4 Street Outreach". (Note: a street outreach project that also has a direct service component serving persons other than "street homeless" will require two separate projects to be set up in an HMIS – a "4- Street Outreach" and a "6- Services Only").
- 5. A project that provides only services (other than outreach), has associated housing outcomes, and is not limited to serving clients of one or more specific residential project should be typed as "6 Services Only" and Affiliated with a Residential Project will be "No."
- 6. A project that provides only services (other than outreach), has associated housing outcomes, and is restricted by its grant agreement to serve only clients of one or more specific residential projects should be typed as "6 Services Only" and Affiliated with a Residential Project will be "Yes." Each of the residential projects with which the services only project is associated must be identified.
- 7. A project that provides only services (other than outreach) that are "stand alone supportive services" and have no associated housing outcomes should be typed as "7 Other." (For example, a project funded to provide child care for persons in permanent housing or a dental care project funded to serve homeless clients should be typed "7 Other." A project funded to provide ongoing case management should be typed "6 Services Only.")

For guidance see Exhibit 1: Federal Funding Sources Relation to HMIS Project Types within this document. Project Type guidance is also available in the individual HMIS Program Handbooks (ESG, CoC, HOPWA, RHY, PATH, VA).

Note: Projects which only provide services and are funded under the HUD CoC Program after FY 2014 which provide services exclusively to clients of a single residential project type (other than emergency shelter) will be identified in 2.6 Federal Partner Funding Sources with the component type of the residential project(s) and not "Services Only". These projects must still be classified with a

	Project Type of "Services Only."
	For the sake of consistency, it is recommended that Dependent B is selected from a drop down list created from element 2.2 Project Identifiers that includes the Project Names and IDs for all non-emergency shelter projects.
XML	<project> and <affiliation></affiliation></project>
CSV	Project (and Affiliation for ResProjectID)
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	A response to indicate whether the project is a continuum project or not has been added.
	Homeless Outreach has been changed to Street Outreach.
	Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing category has been retired and replaced with two distinct categories - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing.
	All program types considered Permanent Housing are relabeled PH – <i>Type of Housing</i> . Permanent Housing (e.g. Mod Rehab SRO, subsidized housing without services) has been renamed as PH – Housing Only. A new category of PH – Housing with Services (no disability required for entry) has been added to distinguish this type of housing from PH - Permanent Supportive Housing (disability required for entry).
	Coordinated Assessment has been added as a project type for projects with the primary function of the HEARTH-required coordinated assessment.
	Residential project affiliations must be identified for services only projects.
	Services only projects which do not have housing outcomes must be identified with a project type of "Other" in order to differentiate them for purposes of reporting.

# 2.5 Method for Tracking Emergency Shelter Utilization

Element Name	Method 1	Method for Tracking Emergency Shelter Utilization							
Field & Response(s) 1	Emergen	cy Shelte	r Tracking M	lethod					
	0	Entry/l	Exit Date						
	3	Night-l	oy-Night						
Element Type	Project D	escriptor							
Project Type Applicability	Emergen	Emergency Shelter							
Funder: Program –	Funder: F	rogram			Comp	onent			
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	1	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH	
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG		ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO		
components	HUD:HO	PWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
	HUD:HU	)/VASH	PSH						

	HUD:RHSP	RA							
	HHS:RHY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HCHV	ЕН							
	VA: GPD	TH							
	VA:SSVF	НР	RRH						
Data Collected About	All emergency she				ļ	1	1		
Collection Point	Initial HMIS project		iewed/update	ed no less	than ar	nually			
System Logic	Collect at initial se purposes. Allow u for data entry erro	etup. System	n stores collec	cted meth	nod and	retains fo			
Other System Issues	One method must Reporting and out The entry/exit me continuous stay, a number of nights measurement will collection stages. project entry/exit enter and exit on The night-by-night and exit on an irrerely on a method collected at project series of dates) thon the nights shell and aggregated to the client may be an exit after an exin this method. The method used projects utilizing a continuous length.	thod should and an exit. It between properties of the client tered; (4) the calculate exited or the calculate exited or the calculate exited or the client tended abservant of stay.	be used for a he length of oject entry an nges from properence for end except for plasis (e.g. mand do not rebed nights". Illected; (2) the utilizes a bede duration of each client's to be system may ence. Length of the indicary/exit date continued to the method do not method do	ing on the all shelter stay will had project entropects was shelte for shelte quire a color this more project di; (3) the seach stay it al length a be design of stay is of ation of leomparisones not me	e methons which pe calculater pand proshelter	require a lated based perform roject exiporojects is ents are allow clus stay and a late as every dimaintains accurate in the project on become a late of l	by the shann entry, and ed on the mance of the use permitted ients to end must in required screte data is historically determoject; and ally generally gener	of the d to be te (or al data nined d (5) rate tilized	
	client in a specific in a bed that mod								
	not necessarily eq	not necessarily equate with the new night-by-night model.							
XML	<project><trackin< td=""><td>gMethod&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></trackin<></project>	gMethod>							
CSV	Project								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	The element name	e was chang	ed from Meth	nod for Tr	acking F	Residentia	al Occupa	incy.	
	The element is lim	nited to use I	oy Emergency	/ Shelter I	Project 1	Гуреs.			

The Bed Management Model has been replaced with the Night-by-Night method.

The Service Model has been retired.

## 2.6 Federal Partner Funding Sources

Element Name	Funding Sources							
Field & Response(s) 1	Federal P	Federal Partner Programs and Components						
	1	HUD:CoC – Homelessness Prevention (High Performing Comm. Only)						
	2	HUD:CoC – Permanent Supportive Housing						
	3	HUD:CoC – Rapid Re-Housing						
	4	HUD:CoC – Supportive Services Only						
	5	HUD:CoC – Transitional Housing						
	6	HUD:CoC – Safe Haven						
	7	HUD:CoC – Single Room Occupancy (SRO)						
	8	HUD:ESG – Emergency Shelter (operating and/or essential services)						
	9	HUD:ESG – Homelessness Prevention						
	10	HUD:ESG – Rapid Rehousing						
	11	HUD:ESG – Street Outreach						
	12	HUD:Rural Housing Stability Assistance Program						
	13	HUD:HOPWA – Hotel/Motel Vouchers						
	14	HUD:HOPWA – Housing Information						
	15	HUD:HOPWA – Permanent Housing (facility based or TBRA)						
	16	HUD:HOPWA – Permanent Housing Placement						
	17	HUD:HOPWA – Short-Term Rent, Mortgage, Utility assistance						
	18	HUD:HOPWA – Short-Term Supportive Facility						
	19	HUD:HOPWA - Transitional Housing (facility based or TBRA)						
	20	HUD:HUD/VASH						
	21	HHS:PATH – Street Outreach & Supportive Services Only						
	22	HHS:RHY – Basic Center Program (prevention and shelter)						
	23	HHS:RHY – Maternity Group Home for Pregnant and Parenting Youth						
	24	HHS:RHY – Transitional Living Program						
	25	HHS:RHY – Street Outreach Project						
	26	HHS:RHY – Demonstration Project**						
	27	VA: Community Contract Emergency Housing						
	28	VA: Community Contract Residential Treatment Program***						
	29	VA:Domiciliary Care***						
	30	VA:Community Contract Safe Haven Program***						
	31	VA:Grant and Per Diem Program						
	32	VA:Compensated Work Therapy Transitional Residence***						
	33	VA:Supportive Services for Veteran Families						

	34 N/A								
Field & Response(s) 2	Grant Identifier								
Field & Response(s) 3	Grant Start Date ([date field])								
Field & Response(s) 4	Grant End Date ([date field])								
Element Type	Project Descriptor								
Project Type	All								
Applicability									
Funder: Program –	All Programs								
Component Requested	All Components								
Data Collected About	All projects								
Collection Point	Initial HMIS project setup, reviewed/updated no less than annually								
System Logic	Collect at initial setup. System stores collected federal program / grant identifier and retains for historical purposes. Allow corrections for data entry error.  An HMIS must allow projects with multiple funder sources and multiple grants (with								
	potentially different grant terms) from the same funding source to record and store all funding sources for the project.								
Other System Issues	The federal funding sources listed in Field & Response(s) 1 are the federal partner programs and their project components who have agreed as of January, 2014 to participate in HMIS. An HMIS may elect to identify other funding sources as may be appropriate to the CoC, but must have available the identification of all of the sources identified in Field & Response(s) 1.  A grant identifier is to be assigned to each federal program being used for funding for the project. The grant identifier may be the grant number or any other identification system utilized by the CoC.  All sub-grantees of a principal grant should use the same grant identifier as the principal grantee as a method of allowing for aggregated reporting by the principal grantee.								
XML	<funder></funder>								
CSV	Funder								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element								
Element Footnotes	* HUD:CoC – Coordinated Assessment – has been added as a placeholder for future guidance on Coordinated Assessment by HUD;  ** HHS:RHY – Demonstration Project – It is the present intention of FYSB that any demonstration projects under RHY will be required to utilize HMIS in data collection. The demonstration project has therefore been included as a placeholder.  ***VA programs not required to enter data into an HMIS except for Project Descriptor Data Elements in CoC's where HMIS is generating the HIC.								

# 2.7 Bed and Unit Inventory Information

Element Name	Bed and L	Bed and Unit Inventory Information								
Field & Response(s) 1	Information		<u> </u>							
Field & Response(s) 2	Househol	Household Type								
,	1	House	holds withou	ıt children						
	3	Households with at least one adult and one child								
	4	House	holds with o	nly children						
Field & Response(s) 3	Bed Type									
	1	Facility	y-based							
	2	Vouch	er							
	3	Other								
Field & Response(s) 4	Availabilit	y (ES On	ıly)							
	1	Year-ro	ound							
	2	Seasor	nal							
	3	Overflo	ow							
Field & Response(s) 5	Bed Inven	itory								
Dependent A –			not blank-							
Dependent to Field &			•	mber of beds			0:			
Response(s) 5	1	Chronic	Homeless B	ed Inventory	(PSH On	ly)				
	2	Veteran	Bed Invento	ory						
	3	Youth B	eds Inventor	У						
Dependent B –	-		ntory is not l							
Dependent to	· ·			er are restrict	ted to:					
Dependent A			der age 18							
	-	<u> </u>	es 18 to 24							
	ļ .		uth under ag	e 24 (both of	the abo	ove)				
Field & Response(s) 6	Unit Inver									
Field & Response(s) 7	•		ate (optional							
Field & Response(s) 8	-		te (optional f	ield)						
Field & Response(s) 9	HMIS Part									
Element Type	Project De	•								
Project Type	1 - Emerg									
Applicability	2 - Transit									
			it Supportive	Housing						
		8 - Safe Haven								
	9 - PH – H		-							
			with Service	S						
	13 - PH - F		-Housing							
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder: P	rogram			Com	ponent				
TOTAL PARTICIPATION OF THE PROPERTY OF THE PRO										
Component Requested	HUD:CoC		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		

N/A for blackened	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
components		-		РП	РПР	ЗІП	STRIVIO	ΙП
components	HUD:HUD/VASH HUD:RHSP	PSH RA						
	HHS:RHY	BCP-es	PCD n	MGH	SOR	TLP	D	
			BCP-p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D	
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO		<u> </u>			
	VA:HCHV	EH			<u> </u>			
	VA: GPD	TH	DDII					
Data Callested Alexan	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH	<u> </u>			(	
Data Collected About	Projects intended							)C
Collection Point		•		s than an	nually an	id updat	ed when	
System Logic	Initial HMIS project setup, reviewed no less than annually and updated when inventory changes or at least annually.  Collect at initial setup. System stores collected bed and unit inventory information and retains for historical purposes. Allow corrections for data entry error.  An HMIS may track the data in a variety of ways as long as historical data are maintained, the HIC can be produced if required by the CoC, and inventory data can be mapped to the linked inventory data elements described in this section. A record(s) must be established for each project. The system must be able to identify <i>Household Types</i> served, <i>Bed Types</i> , and <i>Availability</i> . A project that serves both households without children and households with at least one adult and one child will have at least two Bed and Unit Inventory information records if the element is structured as shown in order to track inventory information by household type. If a project operates different types of beds (e.g., year-round and seasonal) then a separate record is established for each bed type. For example, a project that serves single adults and has 100 beds, of which 20 are seasonal, would have two bed and unit inventory records. One record is for the 80 facility-based year-round beds for households without children and a second record is for the 20 facility-based seasonal beds for households without children. However, the data may also be structured as dependent fields which could allow a single record creation for each						a can entify h hild ht is . If a erves and for	
Other System Issues	acceptable.  These fields must	he transact	ional meanin	g they m	ust he ah	ole to rec	cord multir	ole
Other System issues	values over time a						cora maiti	
The inventory updates should reflect changes in standard project opneed not reflect day-to-day fluctuations. Examples of housing inventhat should be tracked historically include: the addition or removal new beds or units; the addition or removal of seasonal beds that are any period in the year; a project decision to dedicate beds to a differ type; or changes in HMIS bed participation. The inventory history should be tracked historically include: the addition or removal new beds or units; the addition or removal of seasonal beds that are any period in the year; a project decision to dedicate beds to a differ type; or changes in HMIS bed participation. The inventory history should be tracked historically include: the addition or removal new beds or units; the addition or removal of seasonal beds that are any period in the year; a project decision to dedicate beds to a differ type; or changes in standard project operations, but need not reflect day-to-					tory chang of a group available f rent house nould reflec	es of for hold ct		
	These data may all as they can be agg		-	-	inct sites	within a	a project a	s long

XML	<inventory></inventory>
CSV	Inventory
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Households with only children was added as a household type in order to improve consistency between project data as recorded in the HIC and other HUD reports (e.g., AHAR and APR).
	Clarification was added to Bed Type and Availability to indicate that these data are only required for emergency shelter projects.
	Veteran and Youth Bed responses were added to coordinate with the HIC.

### 2.8 Site Information - OPTIONAL

Element Name	Site Information								
Field & Response(s) 1	Principal Si	Principal Site							
	0	0 No							
	1	Yes							
Dependent A –	If Yes to "Pi	rincipal	Site" –						
Dependent to Field &	HUD Geoco	ode							
Response(s) 1									
Field & Response(s) 2	Street Addi	ess							
Field & Response(s) 3	City								
Field & Response(s) 4	State								
Field & Response(s) 5	Zip Code								
Element Type	Project Des	-		ns that gang	rata a Uau	ising Inv	onton. C	`aunt	
Due in at True			•	ns that gene	ате а пот	using inv	rentory C	.ount	
Project Type Applicability	1 - Emerge								
Аррисавшту	2 - Transitio								
	3 - PH - Per		t Supportiv	e Housing					
	8 - Safe Hav								
	9 - PH – Ho								
	10 - PH – H			es					
	13 - PH - Ra	•	-Housing						
Funder: Program –	Funder: Pro	ogram			Com	oonent			
Component Requested	HUD:CoC		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH	
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG		ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO		
components	HUD:HOPV	٧A	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
	HUD:HUD/	VASH	PSH						
	HUD:RHSP		RA						
	HHS:RHY		BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D	
	HHS:PATH		SO	SSO					
	VA:HCHV		EH						
	VA: GPD		TH						

	VA:SSVF HP RRH						
Data Collected About	Projects intended to be included in the HUD Housing Inventory Count of the CoC						
Collection Point	Initial HMIS project setup, reviewed/updated no less than annually						
System Logic	Collect once at initial setup. System stores collected site information and retains for historical purposes. Allow updates if changes or corrections for data entry error.						
Other System Issues	This element is optional. If the CoC does not elect to utilize the HMIS to generate the HUD Housing Inventory Count, then this field is not required.						
	An HMIS must have the capability of allowing projects to enter site information for multiple sites for a single project.						
	Projects that are physically located in multiple CoCs that cross HMIS systems must be recorded as distinct projects within each CoC's HMIS.						
XML	<site></site>						
CSV	Site						
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	OPTIONAL data element – moved to optional status						
	Project Type (2.4) replaces the previous site type response; site configuration type, address and lodging/housing type have been removed to match the current HUD Housing Inventory Count information.						

# 2.9 Target Population - OPTIONAL

Element Name	Target Population								
Field & Response(s) 1	Target Population Type								
	1	DV	Domestic Violence victims						
	3	HIV	Persons with HIV/AIDS						
	4	NA	Not A	pplicable					
Element Type	Project Des	criptor							
Project Type	1 - Emerger	ncy Shelter							
Applicability	2 - Transitio	nal Housing							
	3 - PH - Permanent Supportive Housing								
	8 - Safe Haven								
	9 - PH – Housing Only								
	10 - PH — Housing with Services								
	13 - PH - Rapid Re-Housing								
Funder: Program –	Funder: Pro	gram			Comp	onent			
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	HP		PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH	
nequesteu	HUD:ESG	ES-	- e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO		
N/A for blackened components	HUD:HOPW	'A H/N	VI	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
	HUD:HUD/\	/ASH PSH	1						
	HUD:RHSP	RA							
	HHS:RHY	BCF	o-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D	

	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO					
	VA:HCHV	EH						
	VA: GPD	TH						
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH					
Data Collected About	Projects intended to	be included	d in the HUD I	Housing I	nventor	y Count o	f the CoC	,
Collection Point	Initial HMIS project	setup, revie	wed/updated	l no less t	han ann	ually		
System Logic	This element is optional. If the CoC does not elect to utilize the HMIS to generate the HUD Housing Inventory Count, then this field is not required.  Collect at initial setup. System stores collected target population type and retains for historical purposes. Allow corrections for data entry error.							
Other System Issues	None							
XML	<project><targetpopulation></targetpopulation></project>							
CSV	Project							
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	OPTIONAL data element – moved to optional status.					nit		
	Veteran and Youth have been moved from a target population to the bed and unit inventory for consistency with the HIC.							

#### 3. Universal Data Elements

Universal data elements are those which all HMIS participating continuum projects are required to complete. It is important to note that federal funding sources (programs) often require the projects they fund to maintain and report on additional data elements – identified as Program Specific elements.

HMIS Universal Data Elements are elements required to be collected by all projects using the software as an HMIS. Projects funded by any one or more of the federal partners must collect the Universal Data Elements as are projects that are not funded by any federal partner (e.g. missions) but are entering data as part of the Continuum of Care's HMIS implementation.

Universal data elements enable the HMIS the ability to record unique, unduplicated client records, establish participation in a project within a date range, and identify clients who meet time criteria for chronic homelessness.

3.1	L <u>Name</u>	3.11	Project Exit Date
3.2	Social Security Number	3.12	<u>Destination</u>
3.3	Date of Birth	3.13	Personal ID
3.4	Race	3.14	Household ID
3.5	<u>Ethnicity</u>	3.15	Relationship to Head of
3.6	<u>Gender</u>		<u>Household</u>
3.7	Veteran Status	3.16	Client Location
3.8	<u>Disabling Condition</u>	3.17	Length of Time on Street, in an
3.9	Residence Prior to Project		Emergency Shelter or Safe
<u>Entry</u>			<u>Haven</u>
3.1	LO Project Entry Date		

### **3.1** Name

Element Name	Name			
Field & Response(s) 1	First	(text)		
Field & Response(s) 2	Middle	(text)		
Field & Response(s) 3	Last	(text)		
Field & Response(s) 4	Suffix	(text)		
Field & Response(s) 5	Name Data Qua	lity		
	1	Full name reported		
	2	Partial, street name, or code name reported		
	8	Client doesn't know		
	9	Client refused		
	99	Data not collected		
Element Type	Universal	Universal		
Project Type Applicability	All			
Funder: Program –	All Programs			
Component Requested	All Components			
Data Collected About	All Clients			
Collection Point	Record Creation			
System Logic		only once. System stores collected information. Updates not		
	required, allow corrections for data entry errors.			
Other System Issues	Systems may elect to utilize an extra field(s) for alias or for notes on name changes.			
XML	<client>&lt;&gt;</client>			
CSV	Client			
Change from 2010	Name data quality field & response(s) added.			
Data Standard Notice				

## 3.2 Social Security Number

Element Name	Social Se	Social Security Number		
Field & Response(s) 1	Social Se	Social Security Number		
Field & Response(s) 2	SSN Data Quality			
	1	Full SSN reported		
	2	Approximate or partial SSN reported		
	8	Client doesn't know		
	9	Client refused		
	99	Data not collected		
Element Type	Universa	Universal		
Project Type	All	All		
Applicability				

Funder: Program – Component Requested	All Programs All Components
Data Collected About	All Clients
Collection Point	Record Creation
System Logic	Collect once and only once. System stores collected nine-digit SSN in one field and the appropriate SSN data quality in another. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.
Other System Issues	The HMIS may include hyphens or other punctuation within the SSN to improve readability, but the SSN must be exportable as a single alphanumeric field containing a maximum of nine characters and no punctuation.
	HMIS solutions and HMIS administrators (if the system permits) may designate special <i>non-numeric</i> characters (e.g., the letter x) to indicate missing digits and otherwise devise methodologies to allow entry and effective matching of partial SSNs. Because missing digits may appear in any one of the nine placeholders, it is critical for the system to have a mechanism to indicate which digits were missing when entering partial SSNs; an alphabetic character must be interpreted as a placeholder.
	The HMIS may elect to add an additional field, in a manner defined by the system, for clients who do not have a SSN to facilitate merging duplicated records.
XML	<client>&lt;&gt;</client>
CSV	Client
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	A new data quality response was added to account for persons who have provided an approximate or partial SSN. The clarification of this data quality item is in no way intended to discourage collection of a full and accurate SSN. The HMIS should not implement a change that identifies or implies an individual without an SSN is an illegal immigrant.
	"Client doesn't know" has replaced the former "Don't know or don't have SSN".  The SSN format was clarified to be one single alphanumeric field for extract purposes.

### 3.3 Date of Birth

Element Name	Date of Birth			
Field & Response(s) 1	Date of Birt	Date of Birth		
Field & Response(s) 2	Date of Birth Type			
	1	Full DOB reported		
	2	Approximate or partial DOB reported		
	8	Client doesn't know		
	9	Client refused		
	99	Data not collected		

Element Type	Universal
Project Type Applicability	All
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	All Clients
Collection Point	Record Creation
System Logic	Collect once and only once. System stores collected DOB in one field and the appropriate DOB type in another. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.
Other System Issues	One date-format field for birth dates should be created in the HMIS database.  Date of birth must be exportable in the [date field] format.
XML	<client>&lt;&gt;</client>
CSV	Client
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	The date format was clarified to be [date field].

## 3.4 Race

Element Name	Race		
Field & Response(s) 1	Race (as many as are applicable)		
	1	American Indian or Alaska Native	
	2 Asian		
	3	Black or African American	
	4	Native Hawaiian or Other Pacific Islander	
	5	White	
	8	Client doesn't know	
	9	Client refused	
	99	Data not collected	
Element Type	Universal		
Project Type Applicability	All		
Funder: Program – Component Requested	All Programs All Components		
Data Collected About	All Clients		
Collection Point	Record Cre	ation	
System Logic	Collect once and only once. System stores collected information. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.		
	The HMIS must accommodate the recording of up to five race response categories per client.		
Other System Issues	'Client doesn't know,' 'Client refused,' and 'Data not collected' are not races; they are explanations for missing race data. None of these three responses are valid in conjunction with any other response.		

XML	<client><race></race></client>
CSV	Client
Change from 2010	Clarification made that a system must be able to store up to five race response
Data Standard Notice	categories per client.

## 3.5 Ethnicity

Element Name	Ethnicity		
Field & Response(s) 1	0	Non-Hispanic/Non-Latino	
	1	Hispanic/Latino	
	8	Client doesn't know	
	9	Client refused	
	99	Data not collected	
Element Type	Universal		
Project Type Applicability	All		
Funder: Program –	All Programs		
Component Requested	All Components		
Data Collected About	All Clients		
Collection Point	Record Creation		
System Logic	Collect once and only once. System stores collected information. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.		
Other System Issues	None		
XML	<client><ethnicity></ethnicity></client>		
CSV	Client		
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	None		

## 3.6 Gender

Element Name	Gender			
Field & Response(s) 1	0	Female		
	1	Male		
	2	Transgender male to female		
	3	Transgender female to male		
	4	Other		
	8	Client doesn't know		
	9	Client refused		
	99	Data not collected		
Dependent A –	If Other for	If Other for "Gender"–		
Dependent to Field &	text box for Specify			
Response(s) 1				
Element Type	Universal			

Project Type Applicability	All
Funder: Program – Component Requested	All Programs All Components
Data Collected About	All Clients
Collection Point	Record Creation
System Logic	Collect once and only once. System stores collected information. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.
Other System Issues	None
XML	<client>&lt;&gt;</client>
CSV	Client
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	The word "transgendered" was changed to "transgender".  Dependent A is a new field.

### 3.7 Veteran Status

Element Name	Veteran Status		
Field & Response(s) 1	Veteran Status		
	0	No	
	1	Yes	
	8	Client doesn't know	
	9	Client refused	
	99	Data not collected	
Element Type	Universal		
Project Type	All		
Applicability			
Data Collected About	All Adults		
Funder: Program –	All Programs		
Component Requested	All Components		
Collection Point	Record Creation		
System Logic	Collect once at FIRST project entry as an adult. System stores collected information and retains for historical purpose.		
	A user must entry.	have the ability to enter data for a client who turns 18 after project	
Other System Issues	Veteran status should carry forward from project entry to project entry (e.g. DOB carry forward) within the HMIS. User changes should be allowed for three cases: (1) when a client ages into adulthood (if the system does not program for that), (2) when a client who has historically has been served as a non-vet enrolls in the service and returns later as a veteran, or (3) when a data entry error has occurred.		
	Updates are required for persons aging into adulthood.		
	Systems ma	y be programmed to automatically create a response for clients who	

	turn 18 while enrolled; the auto-generated response should be 'No.
XML	<client><veteranstatus></veteranstatus></client>
CSV	Client
Change from 2010	Data collection stage changed from project entry to record creation
Data Standard Notice	

# 3.8 Disabling Condition

Element Name	Disabling Condition		
Field & Response(s) 1	Disabling Condition		
	0	No	
	1	Yes	
	8	Client doesn't know	
	9	Client refused	
	99	Data not collected	
Element Type	Universal		
Project Type Applicability	All		
Funder: Program –	All Programs		
Component Requested	All Components		
Data Collected About	All Adults		
Collection Point	Project Entry		
System Logic	Collect once at project entry. System stores collected information and retains for historical purpose.		
Other System Issues	Disabling Condition directly relates to the Program-Specific Elements capturing more detailed information on Special Needs: Physical Disability, Developmental Disability, Chronic Health Condition, HIV/AIDS, Mental Health Problem, and/or Substance Abuse. If all of the Special Needs elements are present for completion in the HMIS application for a particular project then disabling condition may be inferred to be "yes" from an answer of "yes" to the dependent field in those elements "expected to be of long—continued and indefinite duration and substantially impairs ability to live independently". Disabling condition may either be entered by the user independently of any other special need field, or data in this field may be inferred by the responses to "ability to live independently". If any one of these is "yes" then disabling condition should also be "yes".		
XML	<enrollment><disablingcondition></disablingcondition></enrollment>		
CSV	Enrollment		
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Changed to allow systems to support an inferred "yes".		

## 3.9 Residence Prior to Project Entry

Element Name	Residence Prior to Project Entry		
Field & Response(s) 1	Type of Residence		
	1	Emergency shelter, including hotel or motel paid for with emergency shelter voucher	
	15	Foster care home or foster care group home	
	6	Hospital or other residential non-psychiatric medical facility	
	14	Hotel or motel paid for without emergency shelter voucher	
	7	Jail, prison or juvenile detention facility	
	24	Long-term care facility or nursing home	
	23	Owned by client, no ongoing housing subsidy	
	21	Owned by client, with ongoing housing subsidy	
	3	Permanent housing for formerly homeless persons (such as: a CoC project; HUD legacy programs; or HOPWA PH)	
	16	Place not meant for habitation (e.g., a vehicle, an abandoned building, bus/train/subway station/airport or anywhere outside)	
	4	Psychiatric hospital or other psychiatric facility	
	22	Rental by client, no ongoing housing subsidy	
	19	Rental by client, with VASH subsidy	
	25	Rental by client, with GPD TIP subsidy	
	20	Rental by client, with other ongoing housing subsidy	
	26	Residential project or halfway house with no homeless criteria	
	18	Safe Haven	
	12	Staying or living in a family member's room, apartment or house	
	13	Staying or living in a friend's room, apartment or house	
	5	Substance abuse treatment facility or detox center	
	2	Transitional housing for homeless persons (including homeless youth)	
	17	Other	
	8	Client doesn't know	
	9	Client refused	
	99	Data not collected	
Dependent A –	If Other	for "Type of Residence" –	
Dependent to Field & Response(s) 1	text box	for Specify Where	
Field & Response(s) 2	Length of Stay in Previous Place		
	10	One day or less	
	11	Two days to one week	
	2	More than one week, but less than one month	
	3	One to three months	
	4	More than three months, but less than one year	
	5	One year or longer	
	8	Client doesn't know	

	9	Client refused	
	99	Data not collected	
Element Type	Universal		
Project Type Applicability	All		
Funder: Program –	All Programs		
Component Requested	All Components		
Data Collected About	Head of Household and Adults		
Collection Point	Project I	Entry	
System Logic	Collect once at each project entry. System stores collected information as "project entry stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.  Updates are required only for persons aging into adulthood.		
Other System Issues	None		
XML	<enrollment>&lt;&gt;</enrollment>		
CSV	Enrollm	ent	
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	unaccor for all H collection Updates program into adu The Hos other re formerly have be	spital, non-psychiatric response category has been expanded to include sidential non-psychiatric medical facilities. Permanent housing for homeless persons now includes HOPWA PH. Three response categories en added: Long-term care facility or nursing home, Residential project or house with no homeless criteria and Rental by client, with GPD TIP	
	Length o	of stay updated to meet federal partner requirements.	

# 3.10 Project Entry Date

Element Name	Project Entry Date
Field & Response(s) 1	Project Entry Date ([date field])
Element Type	Universal
Project Type Applicability	All
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	All Clients
Collection Point	Project Entry

System Logic	Collect once at each project entry. System stores collected information as "project entry stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.
Other System Issues	<ul> <li>The project entry date indicates a client has joined the project.</li> <li>For residential projects, with the exception of PH-RRH project types, this is to be the date of entry into residency.</li> <li>For PH-RRH project and non-residential projects it is the date on which the client was determined to be eligible for the project.</li> <li>For Street Outreach projects it is the date of first contact with the client.</li> <li>For projects that have activities or information the project needs to collect prior to residential entry a project may have a "pre-entry" project also established or the vendor may develop another way to manage the information.</li> <li>The project entry date must be exportable in the [date field] format.</li> </ul>
XML	<enrollment><entrydate></entrydate></enrollment>
CSV	Enrollment
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	None

# 3.11 Project Exit Date

Element Name	Project Exit Date
Field & Response(s) 1	Project Exit Date ([date field])
Element Type	Universal
Project Type Applicability	AII
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	All Clients
Collection Point	Project Exit
System Logic	Collect once at each project exit. System stores collected information as "project exit stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.
Other System Issues	The project exit date indicates a client has left the project. For residential projects this is the date of move out.  For residential projects that have activities or information the project needs to collect after residential exit a project may have a separate "follow-up" project established or the vendor may develop another way to manage the information.  For some "services-only" projects a record may need to remain open an indefinite period of time and an exit date recorded only when the client completes the service, is no longer in need of the service, has asked to be exited, or has gone missing.

	A client with an open record (i.e. project entry without a project exit) for a CoC defined "extensive length of time" in a shelter, outreach, or prevention program type may be either automatically exited from the project (exit date = date of auto exit) or may be flagged for user intervention and exit. The CoC must be involved in the determination of "extensive length of time" and to which projects the solution is to be applied. This may be accomplished via program setup functionality that may include a data field in each project's setup/profile to record the period of no client contact after which a client would be flagged for a default exit, or in any other manner the HMIS elects.  For systems that require all shelter clients to reapply for service on a nightly basis, the project can enter the entry and exit date at the same time or can specify an HMIS solution that automatically enters the exit date as the day after the entry date for clients of the overnight project.
XML	If a client is in a project for a single day and has received some service but has not slept in a bed overnight (i.e., starts and stops before midnight of same day) the Project Exit Date may be the same as the Project Entry Date.  The project exit date must be exportable in the [date field] format. <exit><exit><exitdate></exitdate></exit></exit>
CSV	Exit
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Clarified Other System Issues.

### 3.12 Destination

Element Name	Destination		
Field & Response(s) 1	Destination Type		
	24	Deceased	
	1	Emergency shelter, including hotel or motel paid for with emergency shelter voucher	
	15	Foster care home or foster care group home	
	6	Hospital or other residential non-psychiatric medical facility	
	14	Hotel or motel paid for without emergency shelter voucher	
	7	Jail, prison or juvenile detention facility	
	25	Long-term care facility or nursing home	
	26	Moved from one HOPWA funded project to HOPWA PH	
	27	Moved from one HOPWA funded project to HOPWA TH	
	11	Owned by client, no ongoing housing subsidy	
	21	Owned by client, with ongoing housing subsidy	
	3	Permanent housing for formerly homeless persons (such as: CoC	
		project; or HUD legacy programs; or HOPWA PH)	
	16	Place not meant for habitation (e.g., a vehicle, an abandoned building, bus/train/subway station/airport or anywhere outside)	

	4	Psychiatric hospital or other psychiatric facility		
	10	Rental by client, no ongoing housing subsidy		
	19	Rental by client, nit origining nousing subsidy		
	28	Rental by client, with VAST Housing subsidy  Rental by client, with GPD TIP housing subsidy		
	20			
		Rental by client, with other ongoing housing subsidy		
	29	Residential project or halfway house with no homeless criteria		
	18	Safe Haven		
	22	Staying or living with family, permanent tenure		
	12	Staying or living with family, temporary tenure (e.g., room, apartment or house)		
	23	Staying or living with friends, permanent tenure		
	13	Staying or living with friends, temporary tenure (e.g., room apartment or house)		
	5	Substance abuse treatment facility or detox center		
	2	Transitional housing for homeless persons (including homeless youth)		
	17	Other		
	30	No exit interview completed		
	8	Client doesn't know		
	9	Client refused		
	99	Data not collected		
Dependent A –	If Other fo	r "Destination Type" –		
Dependent to Field &	text box for Specify Where			
Response(s) 1				
Element Type	Universal			
Project Type Applicability	All			
Funder: Program –	All Programs			
Component Requested	All Components			
Data Collected About	Head of Household and Adults			
Collection Point	Project Exit			
System Logic	Collect once at each project exit. System stores collected information as "project			
	exit stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Updates not required,			
	allow corrections for data entry errors.			
Other System Issues	None			
XML	<exit>&lt;&gt;</exit>			
CSV	Exit			
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Destination has been re-classified as a Universal Data Element. Under the previous notice, this data element was required for all adults and unaccompanied youth. This has been changed so that data collection is required for all Head of Households and adult household members, which will require collection for at least one member of a			
	household comprised of only children.  The Hospital destination type has been expanded to include other residential non-psychiatric medical facilities. Two HOPWA specific destinations have been added.			

There are four other new categories: Long-term care facility or nursing home, Residential project or halfway house with no homeless criteria, Rental by client with GPD TIP housing subsidy, and No exit interview completed.
Client left program without an exit interview was added in order to capture information about those clients. HMIS-generated automatic exits for clients who left must use this option.

# 3.13 Personal ID

_1	I
Element Name	Personal ID
Field & Response(s) 1	Personal ID (HMIS Generated)
Element Type	Universal
Project Type Applicability	All
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Generated For	All Clients
Collection Point	Record Creation
System Logic	Generate one. A Personal ID is an automatically generated identifier created by the HMIS application. A Personal ID must be permanent and unique to a single individual within an HMIS implementation.  A Personal ID must be created, but there is no required format as long as there is a single unique Personal ID for every client and it contains no personally identifying information.
Other System Issues	The Personal ID must be able to be attached to the same individual when served by multiple projects.  Search functionality must exist to facilitate linkage of the same person with their Personal ID as they are served by different projects within the continuum. There are multiple ways to accomplish this. The recommended method of search by users for clients in open record systems is for users to enter a combination of personal identifying information (Name, SSN, Date of Birth, and/or Gender) into the HMIS application and have the application search for matching records. If a match is found and a Personal ID is retrieved, the same Personal ID will be assigned to the client, i.e. the same record is used. If no matches are found, a new automatically generated Personal ID is assigned to the client. Variations or other methods may also be utilized by vendors as long as the system is designed to mitigate duplicate record entry.  HMIS must have functionality to allow the HMIS Lead to de-duplicate multiple records with distinct Personal ID's that are identified as representing the same individual based on identifying information.
XML	<client><personalid></personalid></client>
CSV	Client
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Name change from Personal Identification Number to Personal ID

### 3.14 Household ID

Element Name	Household ID		
Field & Response(s) 1	Household ID (HMIS Generated)		
Element Type	Universal		
Project Type Applicability	AII		
Funder: Program –	All Programs		
Component Requested	All Components		
Data Generated For	All Clients		
Collection Point	Project Entry		
System Logic	A Household ID will be assigned to each household at each project entry and applies for the duration of that project stay to all members of the household served.  The Household ID must be automatically generated by the HMIS application to ensure that it is unique. The Household ID has no meaning beyond a single enrollment; it is used in conjunction with the Project ID, Project Entry Date, and Project Exit Date to link records for household members together and indicate that they were served together.  The Household ID is to be unique to the household stay in a project; reuse of the identification for the same or similar household upon readmission into the project is		
	unacceptable.		
Other System Issues	Persons may join a household with members who have already begun a project entry or may leave a project although other members of the household remain in the project. A common Household ID must be assigned to each member of the same household. Persons in a household (either adults or children) who are not present when the household initially applies for assistance and later join the household should be assigned the same Household ID that links them to the rest of the persons in the household. The early departure of a household member would have no impact on the Household ID.		
	An HMIS may, but is not required to, utilize a Global Household ID at record creation upon initial entry into an HMIS based on the person(s) presenting together as a household at the time of initial entry. A Global Household ID is a value which spans an entire HMIS implementation representing a collection of persons who have been in a household together. Assignment of a client in or out of a global household at a specific project need not immediately affect the client's data at other projects. If, for example, one household member exits from a household in project A and that household is also being served in project B, there is no requirement to alter the household configuration at project B.		
XML	<enrollment><householdid></householdid></enrollment>		
CSV	Enrollment		
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Named changed from Household Identification Number to Household ID		

# 3.15 Relationship to Head of Household

Element Name	Relationship to Head of Household		
Field & Response(s) 1	Relationship to Head of Household		
, , ,	1	Self (head of household)	
	2	Head of household's child	
	3	Head of household's spouse or partner	
	4	Head of household's other relation member (other relation to head of household)	
	5	Other: non-relation member	
Element Type	Unive	ersal	
Project Type Applicability	All		
Funder: Program –	All Pr	ograms	
Component Requested	All Co	omponents	
Data Collected About	All Cli	ents	
Collection Point	Proje	ct Entry	
System Logic	Collect once at each project entry. System stores collected information as "project entry stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Data is time sensitive and may change over the project stay. System must allow for updated information collection if change occurs and must record the date the information was collected as "update stage" information and retains all updates for historical purpose.		
		e must be one and only one individual for whom Relationship to Head of ehold is 'Self (head of household)' for each project entry.	
	proje Relat indivi and r	e event that the individual designated as head of household exits the ct while other members remain, users must be able to edit the ionship to Head of Household for all household members such that an dual present for the entire enrollment is designated as head of household elationships to the head are correct for other members (including the dual exiting the program).	
	applic the H	embers of the household accepted into a specific housing project or cable to a service project are recorded within an HMIS and must either be ead of Household or have an identified relationship to the Head of ehold.	
Other System Issues		erm Head of Household is not intended to mean the leader of the house, r it is to identify one client by which to attach the other household bers.	
	estab	e are no requirements for the identification of the Head of Household lished within these standards. Continuums may elect a method of ification and/or funders may have a preference.	
	It is e	xpected that both the Head of Household and the household member are	

	always in the database together in the same household at a particular project
	The system must allow for the Head of Household to leave the household and have the household maintain the same Household ID while assigning a new Head of Household.
	The system must allow for persons to enter or exit the household without having to complete a full program exit and new project entry of the entire household.
XML	<enrollment><relationshiptohoh></relationshiptohoh></enrollment>
CSV	Enrollment
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element

# 3.16 Client Location

EL	0:
Element Name	Client Location
Information Date	(date)
Field & Response(s) 1	HUD-assigned CoC code for the client's location
Element Type	Universal
Project Type Applicability	All
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	Head of Household
Collection Point	Project entry and update
System Logic	Continuum of Care Code must be collected by all projects with more than one Continuum of Care Code identified in Project Descriptor Data Element 2.3.
	Collect once at each project entry. System stores collected information as "project entry stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Data is time sensitive and may change over the project stay. System must allow for updated information collection if change occurs and must record the date the information was collected as "update stage" information and retains all updates for historical purpose.
Other System Issues	In order to allow projects operating in multiple continuums to enter data into a single 'host' HMIS and provide data to each of the continuums in which they are serving clients, a continuum must be identified for each project entry. The Continuum of Care Code will be used in continuum reporting in the host HMIS to exclude irrelevant data; it will also be used as a parameter for data export in order to provide relevant data to other continuums.
	Data are to indicate the location of the client's current residence and must be updated if the client moves into a different CoC.
	Household data will have to move based on the Head of Household's identified

	location.  Systems may set up defaults to the continuum code of the HMIS implementation, but must be able to accept any other continuum code
	identified in data element 2.3 for the project.
	For data quality it is recommended that the CoC codes used for this element should be limited to the same CoC codes used for element 2.3 Continuum of Care Code.
XML	<enrollmentcoc></enrollmentcoc>
CSV	EnrollmentCoC
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New element

# 3.17 Length of Time on Street, in an Emergency Shelter, or Safe Haven

Element Name	Length	Length of Time on Street, in an Emergency Shelter, or Safe Haven					
Field & Response(s) 1	Contir	nuously Ho	omeless for at Least One Year				
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client do	esn't know				
	9	Client ref	fused				
	99	Data not	collected				
Field & Response(s) 2	Numb	er of Time	es the Client has been Homeless in the Past Three Years				
	0 0 (not homeless - Prevention only)						
	1 1 (homeless only this time)						
	2 2						
	3 3						
	4	4 4 or more					
	8	Client do	esn't know				
	9	Client ref	fused				
	99	Data not	collected				
Dependent A – Dependent	_	-	"Number of Times the Client has been Homeless in the Past				
to Field & Response(s) 2		Years"	5				
			f Months Homeless in the Past Three Years				
	100-1	12	integers from 0 to 12				
	7		More than 12 months				
	8		Client doesn't know				
	9 Client refused						
	99 Data not collected						
Field & Response(s) 3		number of	f months <b>continuously homeless</b> immediately prior to project				
	entry						
	Text box for number of months (partial months i.e. 1 day – 30 days = 1 month						

Field & Response(s) 4	Status	Documented
	0	No
	1	Yes
Element Type	Univer	rsal
Project Type Applicability	All	
Funder: Program –	All Pro	grams
Component Requested	All Cor	mponents
Data Collected About	Head o	of Households and Adults
Collection Point	Projec	t Entry
System Logic	in eme	t once at project entry. System stores collected length of time on streets, ergency shelter or safe haven and retains for historical purposes. Updates quired. Change only if data entry error.
Other System Issues	intend It is no	ement in combination with the Program Specific disability elements is ed to identify an individual or household as chronically homeless.  I longer acceptable to solely use a check box to determine chronic essness.
XML	<enrol< td=""><td>lment&gt;&lt;&gt;</td></enrol<>	lment><>
CSV	Enrollr	ment
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New d	ata element

### 4. Program-Specific Data Elements

Program-Specific Data Elements provide information about the characteristics of clients, the services that are provided, and client outcomes. The HMIS Federal Partners have cooperatively developed these elements. Some of the program specific data elements are collected across all federal partner programs. Others are limited to a single federal partner program or even further to a single component of one of the federal partner programs. Program specific guidance will be issued through HUD in cooperation with their partner programs for each of the federal partner programs utilizing HMIS that will provide users the specific guidance the federal program requires on each applicable element.

An HMIS must have the ability to enable and restrict visibility of elements based on the funding needs of the program. An HMIS may do this in whatever manner they choose (hard coding, customization via system administrators, etc.). HMIS vendors should note that no federal partner expects that any project would have all elements visible to the user. The preference among the federal partners is that only the program specific elements required for the programs that fund a specific project are visible to the user.

The Program-Specific Data Elements that are required for federal reporting include elements that may be used by more than one federal funder program:

4.1	Housing Status	4.14	Services Provided
4.2	Income and Sources	4.14 A	Services Provided – PATH Funded
4.3	Non-Cash Benefits	4.14 B	Services Provided - RHY
4.4	<u>Health Insurance</u>	4.14 C	Services Provided - HOPWA
4.5	Physical Disability	4.14 D	Services Provided - VA Funded
4.6	<b>Developmental Disability</b>		Financial Assistance Provided
4.7	Chronic Health Condition	4.15 A	Financial Assistance Provided - HOPWA
4.8	HIV/AIDS	4.15 B	Financial Assistance Provided – VA-SSVF
4.9	Mental Health Problem	4.16	Referrals Provided
4.10	Substance Abuse	4.16 A	Referrals Provided - PATH
4.11	Domestic Violence	4.16 B	Referrals Provided - RHY
4.12	Contact	4.17	Residential Move-In Date
4.13	Date of Engagement	4.18	<b>Housing Assessment Disposition</b>
		4.19	<b>Housing Assessment at Exit</b>

Program-Specific Data Elements that have been developed by one federal partner and are required for their use are:

HHS: PA	TH Required Elements	HUD:	HOPWA Required Elements
4.20	Path Status	4.39	Medical Assistance
4.21	Connection with SOAR	HUD:	RHSP Required Elements
HHS: RH	Y Required Elements	4.40	<b>Worst Housing Situation</b>
4.22	RHY-BCP Status	VA: S	SVF Required Elements
4.23	Sexual Orientation	4.41	Veteran's Information
4.24	Last Grade Completed	4.42	Percent of AMI
4.25	<u>School Status</u>	4.43	Last Permanent Address
4.26	Employment Status		
4.27	General Health Status		
4.28	<u>Dental Health Status</u>		
4.29	Mental Health Status		
4.30	Pregnancy Status		
4.31	Formerly a Ward of Child Welfare/Foster C	Care Age	<u>ncy</u>
4.32	Formerly a Ward of Juvenile Justice System	<u>1</u>	
4.33	Young Person's Critical Issues		
4.34	Referral Source		
4.35	Commercial Sexual Exploitation		
4.36	Transitional, Exit-care, or Aftercare Plan ar	nd Action	าร
4.37	Project Completion Status		<del>_</del>
4.38	Family Reunification Achieved		

For each Program-Specific Data Element, multiple response categories are provided. Projects may choose to capture more detailed information (or finer response categories) as long as this information can be exactly mapped to the required response categories described in this section. For reporting purposes, an HMIS must be able to produce required report using the response categories exactly as they are presented in this section.

### 4.1 Housing Status

Element Name	Housing Sta	atus								
Field & Response(s) 1	Homeless a	Homeless and At-Risk of Homelessness Status								
	1	Categ	ory 1 - Hom	eless						
	2	2 Category 2 - At imminent risk of losing housing								
	5	5 Category 3 - Homeless only under other federal statutes								
	6	6 Category 4 - Fleeing domestic violence								
	3	At-risl	k of homele	ssness						
	4	Stably	/ Housed							
	8	Client	doesn't kn	ow						
	9	Client	refused							
	99	Data ı	not collecte	d						
Element Type	Program Sp	ecific								
Project Type	All									
Applicability										
Funder: Program –	Funder: Pro	ogram			Com	ponent				
Component Requested	HUD:CoC		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG		ES – e/e	ES – nbn	НР	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:HOPWA		H/M	НІ	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
	HUD:HUD/VASH		PSH							
	HUD:RHSP		RA							
	HHS:RHY		BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH		SO	SSO						
	VA:HCHV		EH							
	VA: GPD		TH							
	VA:SSVF		HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	Head of Ho	ouseho	ld and Adul	ts						
Collection Point	Project Ent	ry								
System Logic				ntry. System				-	-	
	entry stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Updates not required,									
	allow corre	ctions	for data ent	ry errors.						
	If the proje	If the project collecting the data houses homeless and non-homeless persons in the								
			-	for its Point-I				•		
				just the Head						
Other System Issues	None	-								

XML	<enrollment><housingstatus></housingstatus></enrollment>
CSV	Enrollment
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Housing Status has been moved from a Universal Data Element to Program Specific Data Element.
	Housing Status has changed to reflect HEARTH: Defining Homeless Final Rule
	The requirement to collect Housing Status at program exit has been removed for all projects.

### 4.2 Income and Sources

Element Name	Income and Sources				
Field & Response(s) 1	Information Date (date information was collected) [date field]				
Field & Response(s) 2	ncome from Any Source				
	0 No				
	1 Yes				
	8 Client doesn't know				
	9 Client refused				
	99 Data not collected				
If Yes for "Income from any s	ource"				
Indicate all sources and dollar	amounts for the source that apply				
Field & Response(s) 3	Earned income (i.e. employment income)				
	0 No				
	1 Yes				
Dependent A – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 3-1	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]				
Field & Response(s) 4	Unemployment Insurance				
, , ,	0 No				
	1 Yes				
Dependent B – Dependent to	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]				
Field & Response(s) 4-1					
Field & Response(s) 5	Supplemental Security Income (SSI)				
	0 No				
	1 Yes				
Dependent C – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 5-1	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]				
Field & Response(s) 6	Social Security Disability Income (SSDI)				
ricia & Response(s) o	0 No				
	1 Yes				
Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 6-1	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]				
Field & Response(s) 7	VA Service-Connected Disability Compensation				
ricia a ricipolisc(s) /	0 No				
	1 Yes				
Dependent F - Dependent to	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]				
Field & Response(s) 7-1	wionany Amount (currency / decimal)				

Field & Response(s) 8	VA Non-Service-Connected Disability Pension						
ricia & Response(s) o	0 No						
	1 Yes						
Danandant F. Danandant ta	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]						
	informing Amount (currency / decimal)						
Field & Response(s) 8-1	Dais at a disa hilita isa assa a						
Field & Response(s) 9	Private disability insurance						
	0 No						
	1 Yes						
Field & Response(s) 9-1	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]						
Field & Response(s) 10	Worker's Compensation						
	0 No						
	1 Yes						
l · · ·	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]						
Field & Response(s) 10-1	- A :						
Field & Response(s) 11	Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) [or use local name]						
	0 No						
	1 Yes						
Dependent I – Dependent to	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]						
Field & Response(s) 11-1							
Field & Response(s) 12	General Assistance (GA) [or use local name]						
	0 No						
	1 Yes						
Dependent J – Dependent to	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]						
Field & Response(s) 12-1							
Field & Response(s) 13	Retirement Income from Social Security						
	0 No						
	1 Yes						
·	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]						
Field & Response(s) 13-1							
Field & Response(s) 14	Pension or retirement income from a former job						
	0 No						
	1 Yes						
Dependent L – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 14-1	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]						
Field & Response(s) 15	Child support						
	0 No						
	1 Yes						
Dependent M – Dependent	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]						
to Field & Response(s) 15-1							
Field & Response(s) 16	Alimony and other spousal support						
	0 No						
	1 Yes						
Dependent N – Dependent to	Monthly Amount [currency / decimal]						
Field & Response(s) 16-1	Thomas, randant featheries, raceinary						
Field & Response(s) 17	Other source						
i icia di Nesponse(s) 17	other source						

	0	No									
	1										
Dependent O – Dependent to			[currency /	decimal							
Field & Response(s) 17-1		•	. ,,	•							
Dependent P – Dependent to	If Yes fo	or "Other s	ource"								
Field & Response(s) 17	text b	text box for Specify source									
Field & Response(s) 18		otal Monthly Income \$00									
Element Type		ogram Specific									
Project Type Applicability	All										
Funder: Program –	Funde				Comp	onent					
Component Requested	Progra					1					
NI/A fan bladian ad	HUD:C		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES - nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:H	OPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:H H	UD/VAS	PSH								
	HUD:R	HSP	RA								
	HHS:R	HY	BCP – es	ВСР - р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PATH		SO	SSO							
	VA:HC	HV	EH								
	VA: GF	D	TH								
	VA:SS\	/F	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	Head o	f Househol	ld and Adult	:S	I	l		1			
Collection Point	Project	Entry, Upo	date, Annua	l Assessmen	it, and Pr	oject Ex	kit.				
System Logic	The sys	tem must	record the a	appropriate (	collectio	n stage	for each	element.			
	1 -			ıpdate inforr			ge occui	rs mid-year	r.		
				try errors at							
Other System Issues	II.			e element sh			•				
	II.			is programr has been er		ntorce t	these ru	les or to no	otify		
	users w			ponse to "In		ım anvı	cource"	than at loa	oct		
	•		-	must be ide		oni any :	source	tileli at lea	131		
				d then a " N		mount'	" must h	e entered			
				t" is entered	-						
			amount is re		,				'		
	•			esponse 2 "I	ncome f	rom any	y source	" then the	HMIS		
		must auto	omatically re	ecord all sou	ırces as "	no" and	d leave d	dollar amou	unts		
		null or \$0									
				me, but does				-	es'		
				for both the			•	n and the			
	specific	source, ar	nd the incor	ne amount s	snoula be	e estima	atea.				
	To redu	ice data co	allection and	l reporting b	urden						
	•			ged to auto-		total n	nonthly	income to	avoid		
		-		and reduce (			-		l I		
	L			e if "Income			-				

	If a client reports receiving income, an HMIS may be designed such that								
	projects only need to directly enter "yes" for the income source the								
	client receives and have the HMIS automatically generate a "no"								
	response for the other income sources.								
	The HMIS may facilitate data accuracy by automatically changing a "no" in								
	"income from any source" to a "yes" if source(s) and dollar amount(s) are								
	indicated.								
	Updates are required for persons aging into adulthood.								
	The income amounts recorded in an HMIS in Income and Sources do not								
	necessarily equate to documentation of income for "rent calculation" purposes.								
	A rental calculation may not be estimated and has additional sources. Vendors								
	may elect to develop rent calculation tools but should not rely on the income and								
	sources fields for calculations.								
XML	<incomeandsources></incomeandsources>								
CSV	IncomeBenefits								
Change from 2010 Data	Information date is a new field. It should reflect the data collection stage date or								
Standard Notice	the date on which information was collected.								
	Under the previous notice, this data element was required for all persons. This								
	has been changed so that data collection is required for all Head of Households								
	and adult household members, who will require collection for at least one								
	member of a household comprised of only children.								
	The 2010 data element "Income received during the past thirty days" has been								
	replaced with "Income from any source" to indicate that on the date the								
	information is collected the question is answered and, if yes, the dependent								
	fields are completed.								
	Specific income amounts for each source of income are now required.								
	Two response categories have been changed: Veteran's disability payment is now								
	VA Service-Connected Disability Compensation and Veteran's pension is now VA Non-Service-Connected Disability Pension								
	Format clarification provided that each income source and dollar amount for the								
	income source is its own field.								

### 4.3 Non-Cash Benefits

Element Name	Non-Ca	ash Benefits					
Field & Response(s) 1		Information Date (date information was collected) [date field]					
Field & Response(s) 2		ash Benefits from Any Source					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99	Data not collected					
If Yes for "Non-Cash Benefits	from Ai						
Indicate all sources that apply	•						
Field & Response(s) 3	Supple	mental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) (Previously known as Food					
	Stamps	5)					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 4	Special (WIC)	Supplemental Nutrition Program for Women, Infants, and Children					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 5	TANF C	TANF Child Care services (or use local name)					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 6	TANF t	ransportation services (or use local name)					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 7	Other <sup>-</sup>	TANF-funded services					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 8	Section	a, public housing, or other ongoing rental assistance					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 9	Other	source					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 10	Tempo	rary rental assistance					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Dependent A – Dependent		or "Other source"					
Field & Response(s) 9		x for Specify source					
Element Type	_	m Specific					
Project Type Applicability	All						

Funder: Program –	Funder: Program			Comp	Component					
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	НР	PSH	RRH	so	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES - nbn	НР	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:RHSP	RA								
	HHS:RHY	BCP – es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO							
	VA:HCHV	EH								
	VA: GPD	TH								
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	Head of Househol	d and Adult	S	•	•					
Collection Point	Project Entry, Upo	late, Annua	Assessment	t, and Pr	oject Ex	it				
System Logic	The system must i	record the a	ppropriate o	ollection	n stage f	or each	element.	•		
	Systems must also		•		_	e occur	rs mid-yea	ar.		
	Allow corrections		•							
Other System Issues	recommended that users when incons  If there is then at less the HMIS  To reduce data cool lf a client designed shenefit so generate at The HMIS may face "Receiving non-caindicated."	<ul> <li>Data for the fields of this data element should be logically consistent. It is recommended that the HMIS is programmed to enforce these rules or to notify users when inconsistent data has been entered. <ul> <li>If there is a "yes" response to "Non-cash benefits from any source" then at least one source of non-cash benefit must be identified.</li> <li>If there is a "no" response to "Non-cash benefit from any source" then the HMIS must automatically record all sources as "no".</li> </ul> </li> <li>To reduce data collection and reporting burden <ul> <li>If a client reports receiving non-cash benefits, an HMIS may be designed such that projects only need to directly enter "yes" for the benefit source the client receives and have the HMIS automatically generate a "no" response for the other benefit sources.</li> </ul> </li> <li>The HMIS may facilitate data accuracy by automatically changing a "no" in "Receiving non-cash benefits from any source" to a "yes" if source(s) are indicated.</li> </ul>								
	Updates are required for persons aging into adulthood.									
	Non-cash benefits may be entered into more detailed categories as long as these categories can be aggregated into the above-stated non-cash benefits.									
	Format clarification provided that each non-cash benefit source is its own field.									
XML	<noncashbenefits< td=""><td>5&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></noncashbenefits<>	5>								
CSV	IncomeBenefits									
Change from 2010 Data	Information date	is a new fiel	d. It should	reflect t	he data	collecti	on stage o	date		

Standard Notice	or the date on which information was collected.
	Under the previous notice, this data element was required for all adults and unaccompanied youth. This has been changed so that data collection is required for all Head of Households and adult household members, which will require collection for at least one member of a household comprised of only children.
	The 2010 data element "non-cash benefit received during the past thirty days" has been replaced with "Non-cash benefits from any source".
	Health insurance coverage sources have been moved into a separate data element.

### 4.4 Health Insurance

Element Name	Health	Health Insurance					
Field & Response(s) 1	Inforn	Information Date (date information was collected) [date field]					
Field & Response(s) 2	Cover	ed by Health Insurance					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99	Data not collected					
If Yes for "Covered by Health		nce"					
Indicate all sources that apply	/						
Field & Response(s) 3	MEDI	CAID					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 4	MEDICARE						
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 5	State	Children's Health Insurance Program (or use local name)					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 6	Veter	an's Administration (VA) Medical Services					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 7	Employer – Provided Health Insurance						
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 8	Healtl	n Insurance obtained through COBRA					
	0	No					

	1	Yes							
Field & Response(s) 9	Privat	e Pay Health	Insurance						
	0	No							
	1	Yes							
Field & Response(s) 10	State	Health Insura	nce for Adu	lts (or use l	ocal nai	me)			
	0 No								
	1	Yes							
Dependent A – Dependent	If No (	for each of th	ne health ins	surance sou	rces "no	o")			
to Field & Response(s) 3 -	Reaso	n							
10	1	Applied; d	ecision pen	ding					
	2		ient not eli	gible					
(HOPWA ONLY)	3	Client did	not apply						
(HOI W/YONEI)	4			r this client					
	8	Client doe	sn't know						
	9	Client refu	sed						
	99	99 Data not collected							
Element Type	Progra	am Specific							
Project Type Applicability	All								
Funder: Program –	Funder: Program		Component						
Component Requested	HUD:0	CoC	НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH	
All Programs	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO		
All Components	HUD:	HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
·	HUD:	HUD/VASH	PSH						
	HUD:F	RHSP	RA						
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D	
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO					
	VA:HC	CHV	EH						
	VA: GI	PD	TH						
	VA:SS'	VF	HP	RRH					
Data Collected About	All Clients								
Collection Point	Project Entry, Update, Annual Assessment, and Project Exit								
System Logic	Syster	rstem must re ns must also corrections f	allow for up	date inform	nation i	f a chang			

Other System Issues	Data for the fields of this data element should be logically consistent. It is recommended that the HMIS is programmed to enforce these rules or to notify users when inconsistent data has been entered.  • If there is a "yes" response to "Covered by health insurance" then at least one source of health insurance must be identified.  • If there is a "no" response to "Covered by health insurance" then the HMIS must automatically record all sources as "no".
	<ul> <li>To reduce data collection and reporting burden</li> <li>If a client reports "Covered by health insurance" as "yes" an HMIS may be designed such that projects only need to directly enter "yes" for the health insurance received. The HMIS may automatically generate a "no" response for the other non-cash benefit sources.</li> </ul>
	The HMIS may facilitate data accuracy by automatically changing a "no" in "Covered by health insurance" to a "yes" if source(s) are indicated.  Updates are required for persons aging into adulthood.
XML	<pre><healthinsurance></healthinsurance></pre>
CSV	IncomeBenefits
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element, however, Medicaid, Medicare, State Children's Health Insurance Program, and VA Medical were previously collected as part of Noncash benefit element.

# 4.5 Physical Disability

Element Name	Physical	Physical Disability					
Field & Response(s) 1	Informa	nformation Date (date information was collected) [date field]					
Field & Response(s) 2	Physical	Physical Disability					
	0	0					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99	ata not collected					
Dependent A –	If Yes fo	r "Physical Disability"					
Dependent to Field &	Expecte	d to be of long-continued and indefinite duration and substantially impairs					
Response(s) 2	ability to	p live independently					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99	Data not collected					
Dependent B –	If Yes for "Physical Disability"						
Dependent to Field &	Docume	entation of the disability and severity on file					

Response(s) 2	0	0 No								
, ,	1	1 Yes								
Dependent C –	If Yes fo	Yes for "Physical Disability"								
Dependent to Field &	Currently receiving services/treatment for this disability									
Response(s) 2	0 No									
	1	Yes								
	8	Client do	Client doesn't know							
	9	Client ref	used							
	99	Data not	collected							
Element Type	Progran	n Specific								
Project Type Applicability	All									
Funder: Program –	Funder:	Program			Comp	onent				
Component Requested	HUD:Co	С	НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	ТН		
	HUD:ES	G	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
N/A for blackened	HUD:HC	PWA	H/M	НІ	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
components	HUD:HUD/VASH		PSH							
	HUD:RHSP		RA							
	HHS:RHY		BCP – es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH		SO	SSO						
	VA:HCH	V	EH							
	VA: GPD	)	TH							
	VA:SSVF	=	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All Clien	ts								
Collection Point	Project	Entry, Upo	late, and Pro	oject Exit						
System Logic				oject exit. Tl	•					
		_		ent. System:			•			
Other Control to the			-	ow correctio						
Other System Issues		ay cnoose iate respo		lay depende	nt questio	ons it us	er selects	tne		
XML	<disabil< td=""><td></td><td>11301</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></disabil<>		11301							
CSV	Disabilit									
Change from 2010			". "Expected	to be of lon	g-contin	ued and	indefinite	e duration	and	
Data Standard Notice	substan	Information date", "Expected to be of long—continued and indefinite duration and ubstantially impairs ability to live independently", and "Documentation of the lisability and severity on file" are new fields.								
		tly receivii on points.	ng services/	treatment fo	r this disa	ıbility" is	s to be us	ed at all		

# 4.6 Developmental Disability

Element Name	Developmental Disability
Field & Response(s) 1	Information Date (date information was collected) [date field]

Field & Response(s) 2	Develo	Developmental Disability								
	0	No								
	1	Yes								
	8 Client doesn't know									
	9	9 Client refused								
	99	Data not c	ollected							
Dependent A –	If Yes j	for "Develop	mental Disc	ability"						
Dependent to Field &	Expect	ed to subst	antially imp	air ability to	live indep	endentl	У			
Response(s) 2	0	No								
	1	Yes								
	8	Client do	esn't know							
	9	Client ref	used							
	99	Data not	collected							
Dependent B –	, ,	for "Develop		•						
Dependent to Field &		nentation of	the disabili	ty and sever	ity on file					
Response(s) 2	0	No								
	1	Yes								
Dependent C –	-	for "Develop		•						
Dependent to Field &		T .	g services/t	reatment for	this disal	oility				
Response(s) 2		0 No								
		1 Yes								
		8 Client doesn't know								
	9 Client refused									
	99									
Element Type		m Specific								
Project Type Applicability	All									
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Comp	onent				
Component Requested	HUD:C	CoC	НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:F	IOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
·	HUD:H	IUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:R	HSP	RA							
	HHS:R	HY	BCP – es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HC	HV	EH							
	VA: GF	D	TH							
	VA:SS\	/F	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All Clie	ents					•			
Collection Point	Projec	t Entry, Upo	late and Pro	ject Exit						
System Logic	II .			roject exit. T nent. System						

	a change occurs mid-year. Allow corrections for data entry errors at all stages.
Other System Issues	HMIS may choose to only display dependent questions if user selects the
	appropriate response.
XML	<disabilities></disabilities>
CSV	Disabilities
Change from 2010	"Information date", "Expected to substantially impair ability to live independently",
Data Standard Notice	and "Documentation of the disability and severity on file" are new fields.
	"Currently receiving services/treatment for this disability" is to be used at all collection points

### 4.7 Chronic Health Condition

Element Name	Chronic	Chronic Health Condition					
Field & Response(s) 1	Informa	nformation Date (date information was collected) [date field]					
Field & Response(s) 2	Chronic	Chronic Health Condition					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99	Data not collected					
Dependent A –		r "Chronic Health Condition"					
Dependent to Field &		d to be of long-continued and indefinite duration and substantially impairs					
Response(s) 2		p live independently					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99	Data not collected					
Dependent B –	, ,	r "Chronic Health Condition"					
Dependent to Field &	Documentation of the disability and severity on file						
Response(s) 2	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Dependent C –	, ,	r "Chronic Health Condition"					
Dependent to Field &		y receiving services/treatment for this condition					
Response(s) 2	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99	Data not collected					
Element Type	Program	Specific					
Project Type Applicability	All						

Funder: Program –	Funder: Program	Funder: Program Component							
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:RHSP	RA							
	HHS:RHY	BCP –es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HCHV	EH							
	VA: GPD	TH							
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All Clients	All Clients							
Collection Point	Project Entry, Upd	late and Pro	ject Exit						
System Logic	collection stage fo	Collect at project entry and project exit. The system must record the appropriate collection stage for each element. Systems must also allow for update information if a change occurs mid-year. Allow corrections for data entry errors at all stages.							
Other System Issues	· •	HMIS may choose to only display dependent questions if user selects the appropriate response.							
XML	<disabilities></disabilities>								
CSV	Disabilities								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	"Information date", "Expected to be of long—continued and indefinite duration and substantially impairs ability to live independently", and "Documentation of the disability and severity on file" are new fields.  "Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition" is to be used at all								
	collection points.								

# 4.8 HIV/AIDS

Element Name	HIV / AI	HIV / AIDS					
Field & Response(s) 1	Informa	nformation Date (date information was collected) [date field]					
Field & Response(s) 2	HIV / AI	HIV / AIDS					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99 Data not collected						
Dependent A –	If Yes fo	r "HIV/AIDS"					
Dependent to Field &	Expecte	Expected to substantially impair ability to live independently					
Response(s) 2	0 No						
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					

	9	Client ref	fused								
	99	Data not	collected								
Dependent B –	If Yes fo	r "HIV / AI	DS"								
Dependent to Field &		Oocumentation of the disability and severity on file									
Response(s) 2	0	No		·	·						
	1	Yes									
Dependent C –	If Yes fo	es for "HIV / AIDS"									
Dependent to Field &	Current	urrently receiving services/treatment for this condition									
Response(s) 2	0	No									
	1	1 Yes									
	8	8 Client doesn't know									
	9	Client ref	fused								
	99	Data not	collected								
Element Type	Progran	n Specific									
Project Type	All										
Applicability											
Funder: Program –	Funder:	Funder: Program		nder: Program Component							
Component Requested	HUD:Co	C	НР	PSH	RRH	so	sso	ТН			
N/A for blackened	HUD:ES	G	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:HO	DPWA	H/M	Н	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
components	HUD:HUD/VASH		PSH								
	HUD:RF		RA								
	HHS:RH	Υ	BCP – es	ВСР — р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PA	HHS:PATH		SSO							
	VA:HCH	IV	EH								
	VA: GPI	)	TH								
	VA:SSVI			RRH							
Data Collected About	All Clier	nts									
Collection Point	Project	Entry, Upo	late and Pro	ject Exit							
System Logic	collection	on stage fo	r each elem	roject exit. T nent. System low correctio	s must a	lso allow	for updat	te informa	ation if		
Other System Issues		•		olay depende	nt quest	ions if us	er selects	the			
	<u> </u>	riate respo	nse.								
XML	<disabi< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></disabi<>										
CSV	Disabili										
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice			•	d to substant isability and s				•	ntly",		
		itly receivii on points.	ng services/	treatment fo	r this cor	ndition" i	s to be us	sed at all			

### 4.9 Mental Health Problem

Element Name	Mental	Health Problem						
Field & Response(s) 1	Informa	tion Date (date information was collected) [date field]						
Field & Response(s) 2		Health Problem						
, ,	0	No						
	1	Yes						
	8	Client doesn't know						
	9	Client refused						
	99	Data not collected						
Dependent A –	If Yes fo	r "Mental Health Problem"						
Dependent to Field &	-	pected to be of long-continued and indefinite duration and substantially impairs						
Response(s) 2		o live independently						
	0	No						
	1	Yes						
	8	Client doesn't know						
	9	Client refused						
	99	Data not collected						
Dependent B –	If Yes fo	r "Mental Health Problem"						
Dependent to Field &	Docume	Documentation of the disability and severity on file						
Response(s) 2	0	No						
	1	Yes						
Dependent C –	If Yes fo	es for "Mental Health Problem"						
Dependent to Field &	Current	y receiving services/treatment for this condition						
Response(s) 2	0	No						
	1	Yes						
	8	Client doesn't know						
	9	Client refused						
	99	Data not collected						
Dependent D –	-	r "Mental Health Problem" (PATH only)						
Dependent to Field &	How co							
Response(s) 2	1	Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report						
(PATH ONLY)	2	Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation						
, ,	3	Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records						
Dependent E –	, ,	r "Mental Health Problem" (PATH only)						
Dependent to Field &		mental illness (SMI) and, if SMI, how confirmed						
Response(s) 2	0	No						
(PATH ONLY)	1	Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report						
(17.11.7 01421)	2	Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation						
	3	Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records						
	8	Client doesn't know						
	9	Client refused						
Element Type	Program	n Specific						

Funder: Program	under: Program Component							
HUD:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
HUD:ESG	UD:ESG ES – e/e ES – nbn HP RRH SO							
HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH							
HUD:RHSP	RA							
HHS:RHY	BCP – es	ВСР – р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
HHS:PATH	SO	SSO						
VA:HCHV	EH							
VA: GPD	TH							
VA:SSVF	HP	RRH						
All Clients								
Project Entry, Upd	Project Entry, Update and Project Exit							
collection stage fo	Collect at project entry and project exit. The system must record the appropriate collection stage for each element. Systems must also allow for update information if a change occurs mid-year. Allow corrections for data entry errors at all stages							
•		lay dependei	nt questi	ons if us	er selects	the		
	rise.							
"Information date" and "Documentation of the disability and severity on file" are new fields.  "Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition" is to be used at all collection points.  PATH-required fields pertaining to how staff determined the client's mental health								
	HUD:CoC HUD:ESG HUD:HOPWA HUD:HUD/VASH HUD:RHSP HHS:RHY HHS:PATH VA:HCHV VA: GPD VA:SSVF All Clients Project Entry, Upo Collect at project of a change occurs of a change occurs of a change occurs of the collection stage for a change occurs of the collection points.  "Currently receiving collection points."	HUD:CoC HP HUD:ESG ES - e/e HUD:HOPWA H/M HUD:HUD/VASH PSH HUD:RHSP RA HHS:RHY BCP - es HHS:PATH SO VA:HCHV EH VA: GPD TH VA:SSVF HP All Clients Project Entry, Update and Pro Collect at project entry and pro collection stage for each elem a change occurs mid-year. All HMIS may choose to only disp appropriate response. <disabilities> Disabilities "Information date" and "Documew fields.  "Currently receiving services/scollection points.  PATH-required fields pertaining</disabilities>	HUD:CoC HP PSH HUD:ESG ES - e/e ES - nbn HUD:HOPWA H/M HI HUD:HUD/VASH PSH HUD:RHSP RA HHS:RHY BCP - es BCP - p HHS:PATH SO SSO VA:HCHV EH VA: GPD TH VA:SSVF HP RRH All Clients Project Entry, Update and Project Exit Collect at project entry and project exit. The collection stage for each element. Systems a change occurs mid-year. Allow correction HMIS may choose to only display dependent appropriate response. <disabilities> Disabilities "Information date" and "Documentation or new fields.  "Currently receiving services/treatment for collection points.  PATH-required fields pertaining to how stages.</disabilities>	HUD:CoC HP PSH RRH HUD:ESG ES – e/e ES – nbn HP HUD:HOPWA H/M HI PH HUD:HUD/VASH PSH HUD:RHSP RA HHS:RHY BCP – es BCP – p MGH HHS:PATH SO SSO VA:HCHV EH VA: GPD TH VA:SSVF HP RRH All Clients Project Entry, Update and Project Exit Collect at project entry and project exit. The system collection stage for each element. Systems must also a change occurs mid-year. Allow corrections for data thm Smay choose to only display dependent questic appropriate response. <disabilities> Disabilities&gt; Disabilities "Information date" and "Documentation of the disanew fields.  "Currently receiving services/treatment for this concollection points.  PATH-required fields pertaining to how staff determination of the disangle of the staff determination of the disangle of the staff determination points.</disabilities>	HUD:CoC HP PSH RRH SO HUD:ESG ES - e/e ES - nbn HP RRH HUD:HOPWA H/M HI PH PHP HUD:HUD/VASH PSH HUD:RHSP RA HHS:RHY BCP - es BCP - p MGH SOP HHS:PATH SO SSO VA:HCHV EH VA: GPD TH VA:SSVF HP RRH All Clients Project Entry, Update and Project Exit Collect at project entry and project exit. The system must recollection stage for each element. Systems must also allow a change occurs mid-year. Allow corrections for data entry HMIS may choose to only display dependent questions if usiappropriate response. <disabilities> Disabilities "Information date" and "Documentation of the disability an new fields.  "Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition" i collection points.</disabilities>	HUD:CoC HP PSH RRH SO SSO HUD:ESG ES – e/e ES – nbn HP RRH SO HUD:HOPWA H/M HI PH PHP STH HUD:HUD/VASH PSH HUD:RHSP RA HHS:RHY BCP – es BCP – p MGH SOP TLP HHS:PATH SO SSO VA:HCHV EH VA: GPD TH VA:SSVF HP RRH All Clients Project Entry, Update and Project Exit Collect at project entry and project exit. The system must record the collection stage for each element. Systems must also allow for updata a change occurs mid-year. Allow corrections for data entry errors at HMIS may choose to only display dependent questions if user selects appropriate response. <disabilities> Disabilities "Information date" and "Documentation of the disability and severity new fields.  "Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition" is to be us collection points.  PATH-required fields pertaining to how staff determined the client's</disabilities>	HUD:CoC HP PSH RRH SO SSO TH HUD:ESG ES - e/e ES - nbn HP RRH SO HUD:HOPWA H/M HI PH PHP STH STRMU HUD:HUD/VASH PSH HUD:RHSP RA HHS:RHY BCP - es BCP - p MGH SOP TLP D HHS:PATH SO SSO VA:HCHV VA: GPD TH VA:SSVF HP RRH All Clients Project Entry, Update and Project Exit Collect at project entry and project exit. The system must record the appropriace ollection stage for each element. Systems must also allow for update information a change occurs mid-year. Allow corrections for data entry errors at all stages. HMIS may choose to only display dependent questions if user selects the appropriate response.  CDisabilities> Disabilities "Information date" and "Documentation of the disability and severity on file" a new fields.  "Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition" is to be used at all collection points.  PATH-required fields pertaining to how staff determined the client's mental here	

### 4.10 Substance Abuse

Element Name	Substan	ubstance Abuse					
Field & Response(s) 1	Informa	formation Date (date information was collected) [date field]					
Field & Response(s) 2	Substan	bstance Abuse Problem					
	0	No					
	1	Alcohol abuse					
	2	Drug abuse					
	3	Both alcohol and drug abuse					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99 Data not collected						

O No   1 Yes   8 Client doesn't know   9 Client refused   99 Data not collected   1 Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem"   Documentation of the disability and severity on file   0 No   1 Yes   1 Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse to "Substance Abuse Problem"   Documentation of the disability and severity on file   0 No   1 Yes   1 Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse to "Substance Abuse Problem"   Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition   0 No   1 Yes   8 Client doesn't know   9 Client refused   99 Data not collected   99 Data not collected   1 Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem"   How confirmed   1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report   2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation   3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records	Dependent A – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2	Problem Expecte	ı"	long–contir	or Both alcol		-				
1   Yes   8   Client doesn't know   9   Client refused   99   Data not collected   1   Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem"   Documentation of the disability and severity on file   0   No   1   Yes			1	penachtry							
B   Client doesn't know   9   Client refused   99   Data not collected		_									
Pependent B – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent C – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  (PATH ONLY)  Policy   General Problem   Dependent D –											
Dependent B – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent C – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent D – Dependent D – Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent D – Dependent D – Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent D –											
Dependent B — Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent C — Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent C — Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse to "Substance Abuse Problem"  Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition  O No  1 Yes  Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition  O No  1 Yes  8 Client doesn't know  9 Client refused  99 Data not collected  Dependent D — Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  (PATH ONLY)  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem"  How confirmed  1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report  2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation  3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records											
Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent C - Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse to "Substance Abuse Problem"  Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition  No  1 Yes  Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition  O No  1 Yes  8 Client doesn't know  9 Client refused  99 Data not collected  Dependent D - Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  (PATH ONLY)  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem"  How confirmed  1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report  2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation  3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records	Danas dant D				D-+bll	1 1 - 1 -		f ((C			
Response(s) 2  Documentation of the disability and severity on file  0 No 1 Yes  Dependent C – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Response(s) 2  Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  (PATH ONLY)  Documentation of the disability and severity on file  0 No 1 Yes 8 Client double, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse to "Substance Abuse Problem"  Lie Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem"  How confirmed  1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report 2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation 3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records	•	1 -		rug abuse,	or Both alcol	ioi ana ai	rug abus	se jor su	bstance At	ouse	
Dependent C – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    Dependent D – Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    Dependent D – Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    (PATH ONLY)	•			the disabili	ity and sever	ity on file					
Dependent C – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    Dependent D – Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2    (PATH ONLY)	110000130(3) 2		1	the disabili	ity and seven	ity on me					
Dependent C – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse to "Substance Abuse Problem" Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition  O No 1 Yes 8 Client doesn't know 9 Client refused 99 Data not collected  Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem" How confirmed  1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report  2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation 3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records											
O No   1   Yes   8   Client doesn't know   9   Client refused   99   Data not collected	Dependent to Field &	If Alcoho	If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse to "Substance A						ostance Ab	use	
1 Yes  8 Client doesn't know  9 Client refused  99 Data not collected  Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  (PATH ONLY)  1 Ves  8 Client doesn't know  9 Data not collected  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem"  How confirmed  1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report  2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation  3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records	Response(s) 2	Current	1	g services/t	reatment for	this cond	lition				
B Client doesn't know 9 Client refused 99 Data not collected  Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  (PATH ONLY)  B Client doesn't know 9 Client refused 99 Data not collected  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem" How confirmed 1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report 2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation 3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records		0	No								
9 Client refused 99 Data not collected  Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  (PATH ONLY)  9 Client refused 99 Data not collected  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem" How confirmed  1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report 2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation 3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records		1	1 Yes								
99 Data not collected  Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  (PATH ONLY)  1		8	Client do	esn't know							
Dependent D – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2  (PATH ONLY)  If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse Problem" How confirmed  1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report 2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation 3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records		9	Client ref	Client refused							
Dependent to Field & Problem"  How confirmed  Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report  Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation  Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records		99	Data not	collected							
Response(s) 2  How confirmed  1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report  2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation  3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records	· ·	_	If Alcohol abuse, Drug abuse, or Both alcohol and drug abuse for "Substance Abuse								
(PATH ONLY)  1 Unconfirmed; presumptive or self-report 2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation 3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records	•										
(PATH ONLY)  2 Confirmed through assessment and clinical evaluation  3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records	Response(s) 2		1								
3 Confirmed by prior evaluation or clinical records	(DATH ONLV)			•	•						
committee by prior evaluation of chinear records	(PATH ONLT)							tion			
Floment Type Drogram Specific				ed by prior e	evaluation or	clinical re	ecords				
	Element Type		n Specific								
Project Type All Applicability	* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *	All									
Funder: Program – Funder: Program Component		Funder:	Program			Comp	onent				
Component Requested HUD:CoC HP PSH RRH SO SSO TH	Component Requested	HUD:Co	C	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened HUD:ESG ES – e/e ES – nbn HP RRH SO	N/A for blackoned			FS – e/e							
components HUD:HOPWA H/M HI PH PHP STH STRMU TH	•							+	STRMU	TH	
HUD:HUD/VASH PSH	components			· '	1	1	1				
HUD:RHSP RA			•	+							
HHS:RHY BCP- es BCP - p MGH SOP TLP D					BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
HHS:PATH SO SSO				+	· ·						
VA:HCHV EH											
VA: GPD TH											
VA:SSVF HP RRH					RRH						
Data Collected About All Clients	Data Collected About							1	1	<u> </u>	

Collection Point	Project Entry, Update and Project Exit
System Logic	Collect at project entry and project exit. The system must record the appropriate collection stage for each element. Systems must also allow for update information if a change occurs mid-year. Allow corrections for data entry errors at all stages.  Record date the information was collected and the client's substance abuse status
	on that date. System stores collected data and retains for historical purposes.
Other System Issues	HMIS may choose to only display dependent questions if user selects the appropriate response.
XML	<disabilities></disabilities>
CSV	Disabilities
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	"Information date" and "Documentation of the disability and severity on file" are new fields.
	"Currently receiving services/treatment for this condition" is to be used at all collection points.
	PATH-required field pertaining to how staff determined the client's substance use/abuse status have also been added.

# 4.11 Domestic Violence

Element Name	Domestic \	Domestic Violence						
Field & Response(s) 1	Informatio	nformation Date (date information was collected) [date field]						
Field & Response(s) 2	Domestic \	/iolence	e Victim/Survivor					
	0	No						
	1	Yes						
	8	Client doesn't know						
	9	Client	refused					
	99	Data not collected						
Dependent A –	If Yes for "	Yes for "Domestic Violence Victim/Survivor"						
Dependent to Field &	When exp	When experience occurred						
Response(s) 2	1	the past three months						
	2	Three	to six months ago (excluding six months exactly)					
	3	Six mo	nths to one year ago (excluding one year exactly)					
	4	One ye	ear ago or more					
	8	Client	doesn't know					
	9	Client	refused					
	99	Data n	ot collected					
Element Type	Program S	pecific						
Project Type	All							
Applicability								
Funder: Program –	Funder: Pr	under: Program Component						

Component Requested	HUD:CoC	НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
N/A for blackened	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH							
components	HUD:RHSP	RA							
	HHS:RHY	BCP – es	ВСР — р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HCHV	EH							
	VA: GPD	TH							
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	Head of Household and Adults								
Collection Point	Project Entry, Update								
System Logic	must also allow fo	The system must record the appropriate collection stage for each element. Systems must also allow for update information if a change occurs mid-year. Allow corrections for data entry errors at all stages.						stems	
	Data are time sensitive and may change over the project stay. System must allow for updated information collection if change occurs and must record the date the								
	information was o	collected as		_					
Other System Issues	None								
XML	<domesticviolence< td=""><td>ce&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></domesticviolence<>	ce>							
CSV	HealthAndDV								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	"Information date	e" is a new fi	eld.						

# 4.12 Contact

Element Name	Contact	ontact							
Field & Response(s) 1	Date of Co	ate of Contact (date) [date field]							
Field & Response(s) 2	Location of	ocation of Contact							
	1	1 Place not meant for habitation							
	2	Service setting, non-residential							
	3	Service setting, residential							
Element Type	Program S	Program Specific							
Project Type	4 - Street	4 - Street Outreach							
Applicability	6 - Service	es Only							
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder: P	rogram			Comp	onent			
Component Requested	HUD:CoC		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH	
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG		ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO		
components	HUD:HOP	WA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
	HUD:HUD	/VASH	PSH						

	HUD:RHSP	RA							
	HHS:RHY	BCP- es	ВСР - р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HCHV	EH							
	VA: GPD	TH							
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	Head of Househol	Head of Household and Adults							
Collection Point	Project Entry, Upo	Project Entry, Update, Project Exit							
System Logic	record the appropriate all stages.  One record of coron the data in this election of the contact muters.	Data are time sensitive and may change over the project stay. The system must record the appropriate collection stage for each element. Systems must also allow for updated information as a change occurs. Allow corrections for data entry errors at all stages.  One record of contact is required for each contact made.  The data in this element are transactional data; each time there is a contact a record of the contact must be recorded including the date and contact information.							
Other System Issues	None								
XML	<services></services>								
CSV	Services								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Under the previous notice, the time of contact was required; it is now optional.								

# 4.13 Date of Engagement

Element Name	Dates of Engagem	Dates of Engagement							
Field & Response(s) 1	Date of Engagement (date) [date field]								
Element Type	Program Specific	Program Specific							
Project Type Applicability	,	- Emergency Shelter (night by night) - Street Outreach							
	6 - Services Only								
Funder: Program –	Funder: Program			Comp	onent				
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
N/A for blackened	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
components	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:RHSP	RA							
	HHS:RHY	BCP- es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HCHV	EH							
	VA: GPD	TH							
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	Head of Househol	d and Adult	S		-		-	•	

Collection Point	Update
System Logic	Only one date of engagement is allowed between the project entry date and project exit date.
Other System Issues	If a client returns to the project at a later date the previous date of engagement does not apply to the new project entry. The client must be re-entered based on the new project entry and project exit date service period.  It is also possible that a case may be closed without the client becoming engaged and thus null in that client record.
XML	<dateofengagement></dateofengagement>
CSV	Enrollment
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	Collection point clarified.

### 4.14 Services Provided

### 4.14 A Services Provided - PATH Funded

Element Name	Services	Services Provided –PATH Funded								
Field & Response(s) 1	Date of S	Date of Service (date) [date field]								
Field & Response(s) 2	Type of PATH FUNDED Service Provided									
	1	Outreach								
	2	Screen	ing/assessm	ent						
	3	Habilitation/rehabilitation								
	4	4 Community mental health								
	5	Substa	nce use trea	tment						
	6	6 Case management								
	7	7 Residential supportive services								
	8	Housin	g minor ren	ovation						
	9	Housin	g moving as	sistance						
	10	Housin	g technical a	assistance						
	11	Securit	y deposits							
	12	One-time rent for eviction prevention								
	13	Other I	PATH funded	d service						
Element Type	Program	Specific								
Project Type	4 - Street Outreach									
Applicability	6 - Servic	es Only								
Funder: Program –	Funder:				Com	oonent				
Component Requested	Program									
AL/A Contident and	HUD:CoC	•	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened components	HUD:ESG		ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
	HUD:HOPWA		H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
	HUD:HUD/VASH		PSH							
	HUD:RHS	P	RA							

	HHS:RHY	BCP- es	ВСР - р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D				
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO								
	VA:HCHV	EH									
	VA: GPD	TH									
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH								
Data Collected About	Head of Househ	Head of Household and Adults									
Collection Point	As provided - up	date									
System Logic	Data are time sensitive and may change over the project stay. System must allow for updated information collection as change occurs and must record the date the information was collected as "update stage" information and retains all updates for historical purpose.										
Other System Issues	The data in this element are transactional data; each time the service is delivered a record of the date of service and the service element must be maintained.  If a service benefits the entire household it must be recorded for the Head of Household.  PATH only records services that are PATH funded. If providers want to collect other services provided then a separate element must be created to distinguish PATH funded services from non-PATH funded services.										
VAAI	PATH only will report on persons who received services who are enrolled.										
XML	<services></services>										
CSV	Services										
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	The previous notice included data element 4.15H <i>Services Provided</i> as an optional data element. This data element is specific to the funder: program requested.										

#### 4.14 B Services Provided - RHY

Element Name	Servic	es Provided - RHY	BCP- PREV.	BCP- ES	TLP & MGH	SOP	DEMO			
Field & Response(s) 1	Date o	of Service (date) [date field]	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х			
Field &	Type o	of RHY Service								
Response(s) 2	1	Basic support services	Χ	Χ	Χ		Х			
	2	Community service/service learning (CSL)	Х	Χ	Χ		Х			
	3	Counseling/therapy	Х	Χ	Χ		Х			
	4	Dental care	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	5	Education	X	X	Χ		Х			
	6	Employment and training services	Χ	Х	Χ		Х			
	7	Criminal justice /legal services	Χ	Х	Χ		Х			
	8	Life skills training	Χ	Х	Χ		Х			
	9	Parenting education for parent of youth	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	10	Parenting education for youth with children	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	11	Peer (youth) counseling	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	12	Post-natal care			Χ		Х			
	13	Pre-natal care			Χ		Х			
	14	Health/medical care	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	15	Psychological or psychiatric care	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	16	Recreational activities	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	17	Substance abuse assessment and/or treatment	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	18	Substance abuse prevention	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	19	Support group	Х	Х	Χ		Х			
	20	Preventative – overnight interim, respite	Х							
	21	Preventative – formal placement in an alternative setting outside of BCP	Х							
	22	Preventative – entry into BCP after preventative services	Х							
	23	Street Outreach – Health and Hygiene Products Distributed				Х				
	24	Street Outreach – Food and Drink Items				Х				
	25	Street Outreach – Services Information/Brochures				Х				
Element Type		am Specific	ı	1	1	1	1			
Project Type		ergency Shelter								
Applicability		insitional Housing								
	6 - Services Only									
	12 - Homelessness Prevention									
Funder: Program	Funder: Program Component									
Component	HUD:0	CoC HP PSH RRH	SO	SSO	TH					

Requested	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH								
components	HUD:RHSP	RA								
	HHS:RHY	BCP- es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO							
	VA:HCHV	EH								
	VA: GPD	TH								
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All Clients receiving se	All Clients receiving services								
Collection Point	As provided - update									
System Logic	Data are time sensitive and may change over the project stay. System must allow for updated information collection as change occurs and must record the date the information was collected as "update stage" information and retains all updates for historical purpose.									
Other System Issues	The data in this element are transactional data; each time the service is delivered a record of the date of service and the service element must be maintained.									
	If service benefits enti	re househol	d, it may be r	ecorded s	solely fo	r the Hea	d of House	ehold.		
XML	<services></services>									
CSV	Services									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	The previous notice included data element 4.15H <i>Services Provided</i> as an optional data element. This data element is specific to the funder: program requested.									

# 4.14 C Services Provided - HOPWA

Element Name	Servi	ervices Provided - HOPWA				
Field & Response(s) 1	Date	ate of Service (date) [date field]				
Field & Response(s) 2	Туре	ype of Service				
	1	Adult day care and personal assistance				
	2	Case management				
	3	Child care				
	4	Criminal justice/legal services				
	5	Education				
	6	Employment and training services				
	7	Food/meals/nutritional services				
	8	Health/medical care				
	9	Life skills training				
	10	Mental health care/counseling				
	11	Outreach and/or engagement				
	12	Substance abuse services/treatment				

	13 Transportation								
	14 Other HOPWA funded service								
Element Type	Program Specific								
Project Type Applicability	1 - Emergency Shelter								
	2 - Transitional Housing								
	3 - PH - Permanent Supportive Housing								
	6 - Services Only								
	12 - Homelessness Prevention								
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder: Program Component								
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
N/A for blackened	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
components	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:RHSP	RA							
	HHS:RHY	BCP- es	ВСР - р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HCHV	EH							
	VA: GPD	TH							
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All Clients receiving	g services							
Collection Point	As provided - update  Note: HOPWA requires that all "stayers" at the end of their annual operating year and prior to the generation of their Annual Report (CAPER or APR) enter all services provided through the end of the operating year.								
System Logic	Data are time sensitive and may change over the project stay. System must allow for updated information collection as change occurs and must record the date the information was collected as "update stage" information and retains all updates for historical purpose.								
Other System Issues	The data in this element are transactional data; each time the service is delivered a record of the date of service and the service element must be maintained.  If service benefits entire household, it may be recorded solely for the Head of								
	Household.								
XML	<services></services>								
CSV	Services								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	The previous notice included data element 4.15H <i>Services Provided</i> as an optional data element. This data element is specific to the funder: program requested.								

#### **4.14 D Services Provided - SSVF**

Element Name	Sarvi	ces Provided – SSVF				
		of Service (date)				
Field & Response(s) 1		of Service (date)				
Field & Response(s) 2	<del></del>					
	1	Outreach services				
	2	Case management services				
	3	Assistance obtaining VA benefits				
	4	Assistance obtaining/coordinating other public benefits				
	5	Direct provision of other public benefits				
	6	Other (non-TFA) supportive service approved by VA				
Dependent A – Dependent	If "As	sistance obtaining VA benefits"				
to Field 2 Response 3	1	VA vocational and rehabilitation counseling				
	2	Employment and training services				
	3	Educational assistance				
	4	Health care services				
Dependent B – Dependent	If "As	sistance obtaining/coordinating other public benefits"				
to Field 2 Response 4	1	Health care services				
	2	Daily living services				
	3	Personal financial planning services				
	4	Transportation services				
	5	Income support services				
	6	Fiduciary and representative payee services				
	7	Legal services – child support				
	8	Legal services – eviction prevention				
	9	Legal services – outstanding fines and penalties				
	10	Legal services – restore/acquire driver's license				
	11	Legal services – other				
	12	Child care				
	13	Housing counseling				
Dependent C – Dependent	If "Di	rect provision of other public benefits"				
to Field 2 Response 5	1	Personal financial planning services				
	2	Transportation services				
	3	Income support services				
	4	Fiduciary and representative payee services				
	5	Legal services – child support				
	6	Legal services – eviction prevention				
	7	Legal services – outstanding fines and penalties				
	8	Legal services – restore/acquire driver's license				
	9	Legal services – other				
	10	Child care				
	11	Housing counseling				
Dependent D – Dependent		her(Non-TFA) Supportive Service approved by VA"				
- Spondone Dependent	1., 0					

to Field 2 Response 6	text box for Specify	text box for Specify											
Element Type	Program Specific	Program Specific											
Project Type Applicability	12 - Homelessness	12 - Homelessness Prevention											
	13 - PH - Rapid Re-	13 - PH - Rapid Re-Housing											
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder: Program		Comp	onent									
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH						
N/A for blackened components	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO							
	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH					
	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH											
	HUD:RHSP	RA											
	HHS:RHY	BCP- es	ВСР - р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D						
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO										
	VA:HCHV	EH											
	VA: GPD	TH											
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH										
Data Collected About	All Clients receiving	g services											
Collection Point	As provided												
System Logic	Services will be rec theoretically unlim to edit existing rec	ited number	of records	per enr	ollment.	Users							
Other System Issues	Services will be rec						a specific						
XML	<services></services>												
CSV	Services												
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	· ·							The previous notice included data element 4.15H <i>Services Provided</i> as an optional data element. This data element is specific to the funder: program					

### 4.15 Financial Assistance Provided

#### 4.15 A - Financial Assistance - HOPWA

Element Name	Finar	inancial Assistance						
Field & Response(s) 1	Date	ate of financial assistance (date) [date field]						
Field & Response(s) 2	Finar	ncial Assistance Type	PHP	STRMU				
	1	Rental assistance	X	Х				
	2	Security deposits	X					
	3	Utility deposits	X					
	4	Utility payments	X	Х				
	7	Mortgage assistance		Х				
Field & Response(s) 3	Finar	ncial Assistance Amount (amount)						
Element Type	Prog	Program Specific						
Project Type Applicability	6 - Se	5 - Services Only						

	12 - Homelessnes	12 - Homelessness Prevention								
Funder: Program –	Funder: Program			Cor	nponen	t				
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
N/A for blackened	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
components	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:RHSP	RA								
	HHS:RHY	BCP- es	ВСР - р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO							
	VA:HCHV	EH								
	VA: GPD	TH								
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	Head of Househol	ds			•	•		•		
Collection Point	As provided - upd	ate								
System Logic	Data are time sen allow for updated date the informat all updates for his	information ion was co	on collection	n as cha	nge occ	curs, mus	t record th	ne		
Other System Issues	The data in this el assistance provide date and financial	ed a record assistance	of the assistinformation	stance i n.	must be	recorded	l including	the		
XML	<services></services>									
CSV	Services									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data elemen	t								

## 4.15 B - Financial Assistance - SSVF

Element Name	Finar	inancial Assistance – SSVF					
Field & Response(s) 1	Date	of financial assistance (date)					
Field & Response(s) 2	Finar	nancial Assistance Amount (amount)					
Field & Response(s) 3	Finar	ncial Assistance Type					
	1	Rental assistance					
	4	Utility fee payment assistance					
	2	Security deposit					
	3	Utility deposit					
	5	Moving costs					
	8	Transportation services: tokens/vouchers					
	9	Transportation services: vehicle repair/maintenance					
	10	Child Care					
	11	General housing stability assistance - emergency supplies					

	12	General hou	using stabilit	v assistance	e - other							
	14	Emergency		•								
Element Type		ram Specific		Starrot								
Tierrent Type		2 - Homelessness Prevention										
Project Type Applicability	13 - PH - Rapid Re-Housing											
Funder: Program –												
Component Requested	Tullu	er. Frogram		Component								
Component Requested	HUD:	:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH				
	HUD:	:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO					
N/A for blackened	HUD:	:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH			
components	HUD:	:HUD/VASH	PSH									
	HUD:	:RHSP	RA									
	HHS:	RHY	BCP- es	ВСР - р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D				
	HHS:	PATH	SO	SSO								
	VA:H	CHV	EH									
	VA: G	SPD	TH									
	VA:S	SVF	HP	RRH								
Data Collected About	All cli	ients receivin	g financial a	ssistance.								
Collection Point	As pr	ovided										
System Logic	Finar	ncial assistand	e will be red	corded as it	is provi	ded. T	he syste	m must al	low			
	for a	theoretically	unlimited n	umber of re	ecords p	er enr	ollment.	Users mu	st be			
	able	to edit existir	ng records a	nd delete re	ecords e	ntered	l in error	•				
Other System Issues		ncial assistand fic service is							I			
XML	<serv< td=""><td>/ices&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></serv<>	/ices>										
CSV	Servi	ces										
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New	data elemen	t									

#### 4.16 Referrals Provided

#### 4.16 A Referrals Provided - PATH

Element Name	Referrals Provided PATH				
Field & Response(s) 1	ate of Referral (date) [date field]				
Field & Response(s) 2	Type of Referral				
	1 Community Mental Health				
	2 Substance Use Treatment				
	3 Primary Health Services				
	4 Job Training				
	5 Educational Services				
	6 Relevant Housing Services				
	7 Housing Placement Assistance				

	8 Income Assis	stance								
	9 Employment	t Assistanc	e							
	1 Medical Assi									
	0									
Dependent A – Dependent to	If any "Type of	Referral"	made							
Field & Response(s) 2	Select Outcome for each									
	Attained									
	Not attained									
	Unknown	Unknown								
Element Type	Program Specif	ic								
Project Type Applicability	4 - Street Outre	each								
	6 - Services On	ly								
Funder: Program –Component	Funder:			Co	mponer	nt				
Requested	Program									
N/A for blackened components	HUD:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:HUD/VA	PSH								
	SH									
	HUD:RHSP	RA								
	HHS:RHY	BCP- es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO							
	VA:HCHV	EH								
	VA: GPD	TH								
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All Head of Hou		nd Adults							
Collection Point	As provided - u									
System Logic	Data are time s		•	_		-				
	allow for updat				_					
	date the inforn retains all upda				ate stag	ge inforr	nation an	a		
Other System Issues	The data in this				lata: pa	ch time t	hara is a r	oforral		
Other System issues	a record of the				iata, Ca	cii tiirie ti	ilere is a i	Ciciiai		
	Multiple types	of the sam	ne referral r	may be	made o	ver the c	ourse of p	oroject		
	enrollment. Ea	ich referra	I should ha	ve an o	utcome	respons	e.			
	Referral outcome is being shown as a dependent response. However, the									
	responses of attained, not attained, or unknown may have better ways of presentation for data collection than as dependent fields as the response									
	may not be kno						-	nise		
	Vendors may e							ata		
	quality. The in			-			,			

	PATH only will report on persons who received services who are enrolled.
XML	<services></services>
CSV	Services
Change from 2010 Data	New data element
Standard Notice	

### 4.16 B Referrals Provided - RHY

Element Name	Refer	rals Provided									
Field & Response(s) 1	Date	of Referral (da	te) [date fie	eld]							
Field & Response(s) 2	Туре	of Referral									
	1	Child Care No	n-TANF								
	2	Supplementa	l Nutritiona	l Assistance	e Progra	am (Fo	od Stam	ps)			
	3	Education – N	//cKinney/V	ento Liaiso	n Assist	ance to	o Remai	n in Schoo	ol		
	4	HUD Section	8 or Other I	Permanent	Housin	g Assis	tance				
	5	Individual De	velopment	Account							
	6	Medicaid									
	7	Mentoring Pr	ogram Oth	er than RHY	' Agenc	У					
	8	National Serv									
	9	Non-Resident	tial Substan	ce Abuse o	r Menta	al Healt	th Progr	am			
	10	Other Public									
	11	Private Non-p	profit Charit	y or Found	ation Si	upport					
	12	SCHIP									
	13	SSI, SSDI, or other Disability Insurance									
	14										
	45	Services)									
	15	' '									
	16	WIC		/\ A / I A \							
Flament Tone	17	Workforce De	evelopment	(WIA)							
Element Type		am Specific									
Project Type Applicability	1 - Emergency Shelter 2 - Transitional Housing										
		rvices Only	SILIE								
		lomelessness F	Provention								
Funder: Program –		er: Program	revention		Com	ponent	•				
Component Requested											
1	HUD:		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:		ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components		HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	-	HUD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:		RA								
	HHS:F		BCP- es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:F	PATH	SO	SSO				1			

	VA:HCHV	EH								
	VA: GPD	TH								
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All Head of Hou	useholds and	Adults							
Collection Point	Update	Update								
System Logic	allow for updat	Data are time sensitive and may change over the project stay. System must allow for updated information collection as change occurs, must record the date the information was collected as "update stage" information and retains all updates for historical purpose.								
Other System Issues	record of the re	The data in this element are transactional data; each time there is a referral a record of the referral must be recorded.  Multiple types of the same referral may be made over the course of project								
XML	<services></services>									
CSV	Services									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data elem	ent								

### 4.17 Residential Move-In Date

Element Name	Reside	ntial Move-I	n Date								
Field & Response(s) 1	Inform	ation Date (	date inform	ation was col	lected) [d	date field	l]				
Field & Response(s) 2	In Permanent Housing										
	0	O No									
	1	1 Yes									
Dependent A – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 2		es for "In Permanent Housing" e of Move-In (date) [date field]									
Element Type	Progra	m Specific									
Project Type Applicability	13 - PH	13 - PH - Rapid Re-Housing									
Funder: Program –	Funder	: Program	Component								
Component Requested	HUD:C	оС	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
nequested	HUD:ES	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
N/A for blackened	HUD:H	OPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
components	HUD:H	UD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:R	HSP	RA								
	HHS:RF	ΗY	BCP- es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PA	<b>ATH</b>	SO	SSO							
	VA:HC	-V	EH								
	VA: GP	D	TH								
	VA:SSV	'F	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All Clie	nts									

Collection Point	Project entry and update
System Logic	Collect once at each project entry and again as an update to "yes" when the client enters housing if the client is not in the RRH housing at the time of project entry.
Other System Issues	When counting an RRH for inclusion in the Housing Inventory Count and "no" is indicated to "in permanent housing" all persons in the household should be excluded from counts of persons served in RRH.  This element is an alternative to creating a pre-entry, services-only project for RRH. Should an HMIS system support pre-entry project functionality then this element would not be required and instead the RRH "project entry date" and the "residential move-in date" would be the same date.
XML	<residentialmoveindate></residentialmoveindate>
CSV	Enrollment
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element

## 4.18 Housing Assessment Disposition

Element Name	Housi	ng Assessme	nt Disposition	on								
Field & Response(s) 1	Assess	sment Dispo	sition									
	1	Referred to	Referred to emergency shelter/safe haven									
	2	Referred to	Referred to transitional housing									
	3	Referred to	rapid re-ho	ousing								
	4	Referred to	permanent	t supportive h	nousing							
	5	Referred to	o homelessn	ess preventio	n							
	6	Referred to	street outr	each								
	7	Referred to	other cont	inuum projec	t type							
	8	Referred to	o a homeless	ness diversio	n progra	m						
	9	Unable to	refer/accept	within conti	านนm; ine	eligible f	or contin	uum proje	ects			
	10	Unable to	refer/accept	within conti	านนm; co	ntinuum	services	unavailal	ole			
	11	Referred to	other comi	munity projed	ct (non-co	ontinuur	n)					
	12	Applicant of	declined refe	erral/acceptai	nce							
	13	Applicant t	erminated a	ssessment pr	rior to co	mpletior	า					
	14	Other/spec	cify									
Dependent A – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 1	<i>If Othe</i> Text b		or "Assessme	ent Dispositio	n"							
Element Type	Progra	am Specific										
Project Type Applicability		oordinated <i>A</i> sment syster		(or other dep	ending o	n CoC d	esign of C	Coordinate	ed			
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Comp	onent						
Component Requested	HUD:0	CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH				
	HUD:	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO					

Components must be	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
determined at the	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH						
local level	HUD:RHSP	RA						
	HHS:RHY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D	
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO					
	VA:HCHV	EH						
	VA: GPD	TH						
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH					
Data Collected About	Head of Househol	d	•	•	•		•	
Collection Point	Project Exit							
System Logic	Collect once at or collected informa purpose. Updates	tion as "pro	ject exit stage	e" inform	ation an	d retains	for histori	
Other System Issues	Unknown							
XML	<housingassessm< td=""><td colspan="7"><housingassessmentdisposition></housingassessmentdisposition></td></housingassessm<>	<housingassessmentdisposition></housingassessmentdisposition>						
CSV	Exit							
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data elemen	t						

# 4.19 Housing Assessment at Exit

Element Name	Housi	ng Assessment at Exit
Field & Response(s) 1	Housi	ng Assessment at Exit
	1	Able to maintain the housing they had at project entry
	2	Moved to new housing unit
	3	Moved in with family/friends on a temporary basis
	4	Moved in with family/friends on a permanent basis
	5	Moved to a transitional or temporary housing facility or program
	6	Client became homeless – moving to a shelter or other place unfit for human habitation
	7	Client went to jail/prison
	10	Client died
	8	Client doesn't know
	9	Client refused
	99	Data not collected
Dependent A – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 1	Assess	e to maintain the housing they had at project entry for "Housing sment at Exit"
		dy information
	1	Without a subsidy
	2	With the subsidy they had at project entry
	3	With an on-going subsidy acquired since project entry
	4	Only with financial assistance other than a subsidy

Dependent B – Dependent	If Mov	ved to new ho	ousing unit f	or "Housing	Assess	ment	at Exit"			
to Field & Response(s) 1		dy informatio		J						
	1 With on-going subsidy									
	2									
Element Type	Progr	am Specific								
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	ergency Shel	ter							
	2 - Tra	nsitional Hou	using							
	3 - PH	- Permanent	Supportive	Housing						
	6 - Sei	vices Only								
	12 - H	omelessness	Prevention							
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funde	r: Program			Comp	onen	t			
Component Requested	HUD:0	CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:	HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
	HUD:	HUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:	RHSP	RA							
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HC	CHV	EH							
	VA: G	PD	TH							
	VA:SS	VF	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All Cli	ents	•	•	•	•	•	•	•	
Collection Point	Projec	t Exit								
System Logic	Collect once at each project exit. System stores collected information as "project exit stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.									
Other System Issues	None									
XML	<exith< td=""><td>lousingAsses</td><td>sment&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></exith<>	lousingAsses	sment>							
CSV	Exit									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New o	lata element								

## PATH REQUIRED ELEMENTS

### 4.20 PATH Status

Element Name	PATH	Status						
Field & Response(s) 1	Date o	ate of Status Determination (date) [date field]						
Field & Response(s) 2	Client	lient Became Enrolled in PATH						
	0	No						

	1	Yes								
Dependent A – Dependent	If No f	If No for "Client Became Enrolled in PATH"								
to Field & Response(s) 2	Reaso	n not enrolled								
	1	1 Client was found ineligible for PATH								
	2	Client was not enrolled for other reason(s)								
Element Type	Progra	am Specific								
Project Type Applicability	4 - Str	eet Outreach								
	6 - Ser	vices Only								
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponent				
Component Requested	HUD:0	CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:	HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
	HUD:	HUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:F	RHSP	RA							
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HC	CHV	EH							
	VA: GI	PD	TH							
	VA:SS	VF	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	Head	of Household a	nd adults							
Collection Point	Updat	e (Collect once	at or befo	re exit whe	n the st	atus is d	leterm	ined.)		
System Logic		t once at or bef		-	-				nation	
		date" informat				purpose	. Upd	ates not		
Other Control Inc.	-	ed, allow corre				.1 (	. 1		10 -	
Other System Issues		one PATH status returns to the p		•						
		and a new resp	-		•					
		t exit date serv			· basea		icii pi	oject cire	., and	
			•							
	If the HMIS supports requiring elements, then this element and its de									
	response should be required for PATH and the client should not be									
		exited without a response to this element. This element is critical to PATH								
VMAL	report									
CSV	Enroll	lStatus>								
			d for DATI	ı						
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	ivew 6	element require	u IUI PATI	1						

#### 4.21 Connection with SOAR

Element Name	Connec	Connection with SOAR							
Field & Response(s) 1	Connec	nnection with SOAR							
	0	No							
	1	Yes							

	8	Client doesn't	t know						
	9	Client refused	k						
	99	Data not colle	Data not collected						
Element Type	Progra	m Specific							
Project Type Applicability	4 - Stre	et Outreach							
	6 - Serv	vices Only							
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder	: Program			Comp	onent			
Component Requested	HUD:C	оC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH	
	HUD:ES	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO		
N/A for blackened	HUD:H	OPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
components	HUD:H	UD/VASH	PSH						
	HUD:R	HSP	RA						
	HHS:RI	ΗY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D	
	HHS:PA	ATH	SO	SSO					
	VA:HCI	HV	EH						
	VA: GP	D	TH						
	VA:SSV	F	HP	RRH					
Data Collected About	Head o	of Household a	nd Adults						
Collection Point	Project	Exit							
System Logic	"projec	Collect once at each project exit. System stores collected information as "project exit stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.						es not	
Other System Issues	If the SOAR program is locally available CoC's may find this element helpful to their CoCs for implementation in programs other than PATH.							ul to	
XML	<conne< td=""><td>ectionWithSOA</td><td>·R&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></conne<>	ectionWithSOA	·R>						
CSV	Exit								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New da	ata element							

### RHY REQUIRED ELEMENTS

# 4.22 RHY - BCP Status

Element Name	RHY - BCP St	RHY - BCP Status						
Field & Response(s) 1	Date of Stat	ate of Status Determination (date) [date field]						
Field & Response(s) 2	FYSB Youth	'SB Youth						
	0	No						
	1	Yes						
Dependent A – Dependent	If No for "FY	SB Youth"						
to Field & Response(s) 2	Reason for r	not providing services						
	1	Out of age range						
	2	Ward of the State – Immediate Reunification						

	3	Ward	of the Crin	ninal Justice	System -	- Immed	diate Re	unificatio	n	
	4	4 Other								
Element Type	Program Sp	Program Specific								
Project Type Applicability	1 - Emergen	1 - Emergency Shelter								
	12 - Homele	12 - Homelessness Prevention								
Funder: Program –	Funder: Pro	gram			Comp	onent				
Component Requested	HUD:CoC		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG		ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:HOPW	Ά	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
·	HUD:HUD/\	/ASH	PSH							
	HUD:RHSP		RA							
	HHS:RHY		BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH		SO	SSO						
	VA:HCHV		EH							
	VA: GPD		TH							
	VA:SSVF		HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All Clients		!	•			Į.			
Collection Point	Update (Col	lect on	ce before e	exit.)						
System Logic	Collect once as "update" required, all	inform	ation and i	retains for h	istorical				ation	
Other System Issues	each project data does n project exit  If the system for RHY:BCP without a real when countries to the countries of the countr	required, allow corrections for data entry errors.  Only one RHY status date and only one response for "FYSB Youth" is allowed for each project stay. If a client returns to the project at a later date the previous data does not apply and must be entered based on this project entry and project exit date service period.  If the system supports required elements, then this element should be required for RHY:BCP-es funded projects and the case should not be able to be closed without a response to this element.  When counting a Basic Center Program Shelter for inclusion in the Housing Inventory Count and RHY reporting, persons identified as FYSB Youth — "No"								
XML	<rhybcpsta< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>1.5 or persor</td><td> 301 400</td><td>••</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></rhybcpsta<>			1.5 or persor	301 400	••				
CSV	Enrollment	,e.								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New elemen	nt requi	ired for HH	S: RHY-BCP						

### 4.23 Sexual Orientation

Element Name	Sexual	Orientation						
Field & Response(s) 1	Sexual	exual Orientation						
	1	Heterosexual						

	I _	_									
	2	Gay									
	3	Lesbian									
	4	Bisexual									
	5	Questioning,	/ Unsure								
	8	Client doesn'	t know								
	9	Client refused									
	99	Data not coll	Data not collected								
Element Type	Progra	rogram Specific									
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em										
	2 - Transitional Housing										
	6 - Services Only										
	12 - H	omelessness P	revention								
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponen	t				
Component Requested	HUD:CoC		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:H	IOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
·	HUD:H	IUD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:R	HSP	RA								
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO							
	VA:HC	HV	EH								
	VA: GF	PD	TH								
	VA:SS\	/F	НР	RRH							
Data Collected About	All Hea	ad of Househo	lds and You	ıth		•	•	•			
Collection Point	Projec	t Entry									
System Logic	Collec	once at each	project en	try. System	stores	collect	ted info	rmation as	S		
	"proje	ct entry stage'	" information	on and reta	ins for	histori	cal purp	ose. Upda	ates		
	not re	quired, allow o	corrections	for data en	itry erro	ors.					
Other System Issues	None										
XML	<sexua< td=""><td>alOrientation&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></sexua<>	alOrientation>									
CSV	Enrolli	ment									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New d	ata element									

# 4.24 Last Grade Completed

Element Name	Last G	rade Completed
Field & Response(s) 1	Last G	rade Completed
	1	Less than Grade 5
	2	Grades 5-6
	3	Grades 7-8
	4	Grades 9-11

		Grade 12										
	5											
	6	School progra	am does no	ot nave grad	de level	S						
	7	GED										
	10	Some college										
	8	Client doesn'										
	9	Client refuse										
	99	Data not coll	ected									
Element Type	Progra	ım Specific										
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	1 - Emergency Shelter										
	2 - Tra	nsitional Hous	sing									
	12 - Homelessness Prevention											
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponen	t					
Component Requested	HUD:C	CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH				
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO					
components	HUD:F	IOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH			
	HUD:F	IUD/VASH	PSH									
	HUD:F		RA									
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D				
	HHS:PATH		SO	SSO								
	VA:HC	HV	EH									
	VA: GI	PD	TH									
	VA:SS\	/F	HP	RRH								
Data Collected About	All He	ad of Househo	lds and Yo	uth			1	-!				
Collection Point	Projec	t Entry										
System Logic	"proje	t once at each ct entry stage quired, allow o	" informati	on and reta	ins for	histori						
Other System Issues	None											
XML	<last@< td=""><td>GradeComplete</td><td>ed&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></last@<>	GradeComplete	ed>									
CSV	Emplo	ymentEducati	on									
Change from 2010 Data	New d	ata element -	Element is	new and a	RHY on	ly data	elemer	nt. If a sys	tem			
Standard Notice	contin systen	usly collected ue to collect d n/CoC decision	lata in that n, not an HI	format for MIS require	project ment.	s other RHY p	than R rojects	HY that is must colle	a			
	uata If	this format a	nu uata irc	1111 ZUIU — 4	TOR CS	iiiiot D	е тарр	eu.				

### 4.25 School Status

Element Name	Schoo	chool Status				
Field & Response(s) 1	Schoo	Status				
	1	Attending school regularly				
	2	Attending school irregularly				

	3	Graduated fr	Graduated from high school									
	4	Obtained GEI										
	5	Dropped out										
	6	Suspended										
	7	Expelled	xpelled									
	8	Client doesn'	t know									
	9	Client refused	d									
	99	Data not colle	Data not collected									
Element Type	Progra	m Specific										
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	1 - Emergency Shelter										
	2 - Tra	nsitional Hous	ing									
	12 - H	omelessness P	revention									
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponent	t					
Component Requested	HUD:C	ioC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH				
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO					
components	HUD:F	IOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH			
	HUD:F	IUD/VASH	PSH									
	HUD:R	HSP	RA									
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D				
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO								
	VA:HC	HV	EH									
	VA: GF	D	TH									
	VA:SS\	/F	HP	RRH								
Data Collected About	All Hea	ad of Househo	lds and You	ıth								
Collection Point		t Entry										
System Logic		once at each										
		ct entry stage'					cal purp	ose. Upda	ates			
011 6 1		quired, allow o	corrections	for data en	itry erro	ors.						
Other System Issues	None	- IC+ - + · · · ·										
XML		olStatus>										
CSV	· ·	ymentEducati	on									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New d	ata element										

# 4.26 Employment Status

Element Name	Emplo	mployment Status						
Field & Response(s) 1	Inform	ormation Date (date information was collected) [date field]						
Field & Response(s) 2	Emplo	mployed						
	0	No						
	1	Yes						
	8	Client doesn't know						

	9	Client refuse	d							
	99	Data not coll	ected							
Dependent A – Dependent	If Yes	for "Employed	1"							
to Field & Response(s) 2	Type of Employment									
	1	Full-time								
	2	2 Part-time								
	3	3 Seasonal / sporadic (including day labor)								
Dependent B – Dependent	If No j	If No for "Employed"								
to Field & Response(s) 2	Why Not Employed									
	1	1 Looking for work								
	2	2 Unable to work								
	3	Not looking f	for work							
Element Type	Progra	m Specific								
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	ergency Shelte	er							
	2 - Tra	2 - Transitional Housing								
	12 - Homelessness Prevention									
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponen	t			
Component Requested	HUD:CoC		НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:HOPWA		H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRML	TH	
	HUD:F	IUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:R	HSP	RA							
	HHS:RHY		BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:PATH		SO	SSO						
	VA:HC	HV	EH							
	VA: GF	D	TH							
	VA:SS\	/F	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All Hea	ad of Househo	ld and You	th						
Collection Point	Projec	t Entry and Pro	oject Exit							
System Logic	The sy	stem must red	cord the ap	propriate c	ollectio	n stage	e for eac	ch eleme	nt.	
		ns must also a	•				nge occ	urs mid-y	ear.	
		corrections fo	r data entry	errors at a	all stage	es.				
Other System Issues	None									
XML		oyment>								
CSV		ymentEducati								
Change from 2010 Data		ata element (u	•					-	en	
Standard Notice	_	cantly changed the previous i							<b>)</b>	
		ed as Program							;-	
		usly collected	-		-			-	cts to	
	1	ue to collect d								
	system	n/CoC decision	n, not an HI	/IIS require	ment.					

#### 4.27 General Health Status

Element Name	Genera	l Health State	us								
Field & Response(s) 1	Genera	l Health Stati	JS								
	1	Excellent									
	2	Very good									
	3	Good									
	4	Fair									
	5	Poor									
	8	Client doesn't know									
	9	Client refused									
	99	Data not co	lected								
Element Type	Progra	m Specific									
Project Type Applicability	1 - Eme	ergency Shelt	er								
	2 - Trar	nsitional Hous	sing								
	12 - Ho	melessness F	revention								
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder	: Program Component									
Component Requested	HUD:C	оС	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:ES	SG .	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:H	OPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:H	UD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:R	HSP	RA								
	HHS:RF	ΗY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PA	<b>NTH</b>	SO	SSO							
	VA:HC	HV	EH								
	VA: GP	D	TH								
	VA:SSV	F	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All Hea	d of Househo	lds and Yo	uth							
Collection Point	Project	Entry and Pr	oject Exit								
System Logic		once at each				-					
		ation as "proj	-	-	-						
		for historical	purpose.	Jpdates no	t requir	ed, allo	ow corre	ections fo	r data		
Other System Issues	entry e None	11015.									
Other System Issues XML		nStatus>									
CSV	Health										
Change from 2010 Data	None	-IIUDV									
Standard Notice	INOTIE										

### 4.28 Dental Health Status

Element Name	Dental Health Status
LICITICITE INDITIC	Delitar Health Status

Field & Response(s) 1	Dental Health Status										
	1	Excellent									
	2	Very good									
	3	Good									
	4	Fair									
	5	Poor									
	8	Client doesn'	t know								
	9	Client refused	t								
	99										
Element Type	Progra	ım Specific									
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	ergency Shelte	er								
	2 - Transitional Housing										
	12 - Ho	omelessness P	revention								
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program	Component								
Component Requested	HUD:CoC		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	HUD:ESG		ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:F	lopwa	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:F	HUD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:R	RHSP	RA								
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO							
	VA:HC	HV	EH								
	VA: GF	PD	TH								
	VA:SS\		HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All Hea	ad of Househo	lds and You	ıth							
Collection Point		t Entry and Pro	-								
System Logic		t once at each				-					
		nation as "proje	•		-	_					
	entry	s for historical	purpose. ι	opdates not	t requir	ea, alic	w corre	ections for	data		
Other System Issues	None	211013.									
XML		:hStatus>									
CSV		AndDV									
Change from 2010 Data		ata element									
Standard Notice		- ,									

#### 4.29 Mental Health Status

Element Name	Menta	Лental Health Status							
Field & Response(s) 1	Menta	lental Health Status							
	1	Excellent							
	2	Very good							

	3	Good									
	4	Fair									
	5	Poor									
	8	Client doesn'	't know								
	9	Client refuse									
		99 Data not collected									
Element Type		m Specific	ccica								
Project Type Applicability		mergency Shelter									
Troject Type Applicability	-	2 - Transitional Housing									
		omelessness P	_								
Funder: Program –		r: Program	levention		Com	ponent	+				
Component Requested	Turide	1. Flogram									
component requested	HUD:0	СоС	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:	HUD:HOPWA		HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:	HUD:HUD/VASH									
	HUD:F	HUD:RHSP									
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO							
	VA:HC	CHV	EH								
	VA: GI	PD	TH								
	VA:SS	VF	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All He	ad of Househo	olds and You	uth							
Collection Point	Projec	t Entry and Pr	oject Exit								
System Logic		t once at each				•					
		nation as "proj s for historical	•		-	_					
		errors.	purpose.	opuates 110	t requii	eu, and	JW COITE	ections to	uata		
Other System Issues	None										
XML		thStatus>									
CSV		nAndDV									
Change from 2010 Data		lata element									
Standard Notice											

## 4.30 Pregnancy Status

Element Name	Pregna	regnancy Status						
Field & Response(s) 1	Pregna	egnancy Status						
	0	No						
	1	Yes						
	8	Client doesn't know						
	9	Client refused						
	99	Data not collected						

Dependent A – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 1	If Yes for "Pregnancy Status"  Due Date (date) [date field]									
Element Type	Program Specific									
Project Type Applicability	1 - Emergency Shelt	er								
	2 - Transitional Hous	sing								
	6 - Services Only									
	12 - Homelessness P	revention								
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder: Program			Com	ponen	t				
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:RHSP	RA								
	HHS:RHY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO							
	VA:HCHV	EH								
	VA: GPD	TH								
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	Females			·						
Collection Point	Project Entry and Up	odate								
System Logic	Collect once at each over the project stay change occurs, must stage" information a	y. System r t record the	must allow a date the in	for updanformat	ated in	formations collect	on collect ted as "up	ion as		
Other System Issues	The data in this element are transactional data; each time there is pregnancy a record of the pregnancy must be recorded.  If Due Date is unknown, default to January first of current year.									
XML	<healthstatus></healthstatus>									
CSV	HealthAndDV									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	None									

# **4.31** Formerly a Ward of Child Welfare/Foster Care Agency

Element Name	Forme	rmerly a Ward of Child Welfare/Foster Care Agency						
Field & Response(s) 1	Forme	merly a Ward of Child Welfare or Foster Care Agency						
	0	No						
	1	Yes						
	8	Client doesn't know						
	9	Client refused						
	99	Data not collected						

Dependent A – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 1	If Yes for "Formerly a Ward of Child Welfare or Foster Care Agency"  Number of Years									
	1	Less than one	e year							
	2	2 1 to 2 years								
	3	3 to 5 or more years								
Dependent B – Dependent	If Less	Less than one year for "Number of Years"								
to Dependent A	Numb	er of Months								
	Numb	er of Months (	1-11)							
Element Type	Progra	am Specific								
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	ergency Shelte	er							
	2 - Tra	nsitional Hous	ing							
	12 - H	omelessness P	revention							
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponen	t			
Component Requested	HUD:0	CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:	HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
	HUD:HUD/VASH		PSH							
	HUD:F	RHSP	RA							
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HC	CHV	EH							
	VA: GI	PD	TH							
	VA:SS	VF	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All He	ad of Househo	lds and You	ıth	·			·		
Collection Point	Projec	t Entry								
System Logic	"proje	t once at each ct entry stage' quired, allow c	' information	on and reta	ins for	historio				
Other System Issues		may choose to priate respons		ıy depende	nt ques	tions i	f user se	lects the		
XML	<form< td=""><td>erWardChildV</td><td>Velfare&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></form<>	erWardChildV	Velfare>							
CSV	Enroll	ment								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New d	lata element								

## 4.32 Formerly a Ward of Juvenile Justice System

Element Name	Forme	rmerly a Ward of the Juvenile Justice System					
Field & Response(s) 1	Forme	erly a Ward of the Juvenile Justice System					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					

	9	Client refuse	d							
	99	Data not colle	ected							
Dependent A – Dependent	If Yes	for "Formerly o	a Ward of ti	ne Juvenile	Justice	System	)"			
to Field & Response(s) 1	Number of Years									
	1	Less than one	e year							
	2	2 1 to 2 years								
	3	3 to 5 or mor	e years							
Dependent B – Dependent	1 -	than one year	for "Numb	er of Years	"					
to Dependent A		er of Months								
	Numb	er of Months (	1-11)							
Element Type		ım Specific								
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	ergency Shelte	er							
		nsitional Hous								
	12 - H	omelessness P	revention							
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponent	t			
Component Requested	HUD:0	CoC	НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:F	HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
	HUD:F	HUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:F	RHSP	RA							
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HC	HV	EH							
	VA: GI	PD	TH							
	VA:SS	√F	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All He	ad of Househo	lds and You	th						
Collection Point	Projec	t Entry								
System Logic		t once at each								
		ct entry stage'					al purp	ose. Upd	ates	
		quired, allow o			-			1		
Other System Issues		may choose to priate respons		y depende	nt ques	tions if	user se	lects the		
XML	<form< td=""><td>erWardJuveni</td><td>leJustice&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></form<>	erWardJuveni	leJustice>							
CSV	Enrolli	ment								
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New d	ata element								

## 4.33 Young Person's Critical Issues

Element Name	Young	Person's Critical Issues					
Field & Response(s) 1		hold Dynamics					
, , , ,	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 2	Sexual	exual Orientation/Gender Identity – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 3	Sexual	Orientation/Gender Identity - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 4	Housir	ng Issues – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 5	Housir	ng Issues - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 6	Schoo	or Educational Issues – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 7	School or Educational Issues - Family member						
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 8	Unem	ployment – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 9	Unem	ployment - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 10	Menta	l Health Issues – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 11	Menta	l Health Issues - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 12	Health	Issues – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 13		Issues - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					

Field & Response(s) 14	Physic	al Disability – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 15	Physic	al Disability - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 16	Menta	Il Disability – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 17	Menta	Il Disability - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 18	Abuse	and Neglect – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 19	Abuse	and Neglect - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 20	Alcoho	Alcohol or other drug abuse – Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 21	Alcoho	ol or other drug abuse - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 22	Insuffi	cient Income to support youth - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 23	Active	Military Parent - Family member					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Field & Response(s) 24	Incarc	erated Parent of Youth					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
Dependent A – Dependent		for "Incarcerated Parent of Youth"					
to Field & Response(s) 24		specify					
	1	One parent / legal guardian is incarcerated					
	2	Both parents / legal guardians are incarcerated					
_ , ,	3	The only parent / legal guardian is incarcerated					
Project Type Applicability		ergency Shelter					
		nsitional Housing					
	12 - H	omelessness Prevention					

Funder: Program –	Funder: Program	ponen	t					
Component Requested	HUD:CoC	НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH	
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO		
components	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH						
	HUD:RHSP	RA						
	HHS:RHY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D	
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO					
	VA:HCHV	EH						
	VA: GPD	TH						
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH					
Data Collected About	All Head of Househo	lds and You	uth					
Element Type	Program Specific							
Collection Point	Project Entry							
System Logic	Collect once at each "project entry stage" not required, allow o	" informati	on and reta	ins for	historio			
Other System Issues	HMIS may choose to appropriate respons		ay depende	nt que	stions i	f the use	er selects t	the
XML	<youthcriticalissues< td=""><td>&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></youthcriticalissues<>	>						
CSV	Enrollment							
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element							

#### 4.34 Referral Source

Element Name	Referr	al Source				
Field & Response(s) 1	Referr	Referral Source				
	1	Self-Referral				
	2	Individual: Parent/Guardian				
	3	Individual: Relative or Friend				
	4	Individual: Other Adult or Youth				
	5	Individual: Partner/Spouse				
	6	Individual: Foster Parent				
	7	Outreach Project: FYSB				
	10	Outreach Project: Other				
	11	Temporary Shelter: FYSB Basic Center Project				
	12	Temporary Shelter: Other Youth Only Emergency Shelter				
	13	Temporary Shelter: Emergency Shelter for Families				
	14	Temporary Shelter: Emergency Shelter for Individuals				
	15	Temporary Shelter: Domestic Violence Shelter				
	16	Temporary Shelter: Safe Place				
	17	Temporary Shelter: Other				

		1									
	18	Residential Project: FYSB Transitional Living Project Residential Project: Other Transitional Living Project									
	19	Residential P	roject: Oth	er Transitio	nal Livi	ng Proj	ect				
	20	Residential P	roject: Gro	up Home							
	21	Residential P	roject: Inde	ependent Li	iving Pro	oject					
	22	Residential P	roject: Job	Corps							
	23	Residential P	roject: Dru	g Treatmen	nt Cente	r					
	24	Residential P	Residential Project: Treatment Center								
	25	Residential P	Residential Project: Educational Institute								
	26	Residential P	roject: Oth	er Agency p	oroject						
	27	Residential P	esidential Project: Other Project								
	28	Hotline: Natio	onal Runav	vay Switchb	oard						
	29	Hotline: Othe	er								
	30	Other Agency	y: Child We	Ifare/CPS							
	31	Other Agency	y: Non-Resi	dential Ind	epende	nt Livir	ng Proje	ct			
	32	Other Project	t Operated	by your Ag	ency						
	33	Other Youth	Services Ag	gency							
	34	Juvenile Justi	ice								
	35	Law Enforcer	nent/ Polic	e							
	36	Religious Organization									
	37	Mental Hosp	Mental Hospital								
	38	School	•								
	39	Other Organization									
	8	Client doesn'	t know								
	9	Client refused	d								
	99	Data not colle	ected								
Dependent A – Dependent	If Outr	each Project: I	FYSB for "R	eferral Sou	rce" is s	elected	1				
to Field & Response(s) 1		er of times app	•	y outreach	prior to	enter	ing the	project			
		or integer resp	onse)								
Element Type		ım Specific									
Project Type Applicability		ergency Shelte									
		nsitional Hous									
		omelessness P	revention								
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponent	t				
Component Requested	HUD:0	CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:F	HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:F	HUD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:F	RHSP	RA								
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO							
			_								

	VA: GPD	TH					
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH				
Data Collected About	All Head of Househo	olds and Y	outh				
Collection Point	Project Entry						
System Logic	Collect once at each "project entry stage not required, allow	" informa	tion and reta	ains for	histori		
Other System Issues	None						
XML	<referralsource></referralsource>						
CSV	Enrollment						
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element						

# 4.35 Commercial Sexual Exploitation

Element Name	Comm	Commercial Sexual Exploitation					
Field & Response(s) 1	Receiv	ved something in exchange for sex in the past 3 months					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
	99	Data not collected					
Dependent A – Dependent	If Yes	for "Exchange for Sex in the Past 3 Months"					
to Field & Response(s) 1	Numb	er of times					
	1	1-3					
	2	4-7					
	3	8-30					
	4	More than 30					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
Dependent B – Dependent		for "Exchange Sex in the Past 3 Months" —					
to Field & Response(s) 1	Did so	meone ask/make you have sex?					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	8	Client doesn't know					
	9	Client refused					
Element Type	Progra	am Specific					
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	ergency Shelter					
	2 - Transitional Housing						
	6 - Sei	vices Only					
	12 - H	omelessness Prevention					
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program Component					

Component Requested	HUD:CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH	
	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO		
N/A for blackened	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
components	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH						
	HUD:RHSP	RA						
	HHS:RHY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D	
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO					
	VA:HCHV	EH						
	VA: GPD	TH						
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH					
Data Collected About	All Head of Househo	lds and You	th					
Collection Point	Project Entry							
System Logic	"project entry stage" not required, allow of	' informatio	n and retai	ns for h	istoric			
Other System Issues	HMIS may choose to	only displa	y dependei	nt ques	tions if	the use	r selects t	he
	appropriate response	e.						
XML	<commercialsexuale< td=""><td>xploitation</td><td>&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></commercialsexuale<>	xploitation	>					
CSV	Enrollment							
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element							

### 4.36 Transitional, Exit-care or Aftercare Plans and Actions

Element Name	Transi	Fransitional, Exit-care or Aftercare Plans and Actions					
Field & Response(s) 1	A writ	ten transitional, aftercare or follow-up plan or agreement					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	9	Client refused					
Field & Response(s) 2	Advice	e about and/or referral to appropriate mainstream assistance programs					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	9	Client refused					
Field & Response(s) 3	Placer	ment in appropriate, permanent, stable housing (not a shelter)					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					
	9	Client refused					
Field & Response(s) 4	Due to	unavoidable circumstances or scarcities of appropriate housing, the					
	youth	must be transported or accompanied to a temporary shelter					
	0	No					
	1	Yes					

	9	Client refuse	d							
Field & Response(s) 5	Exit co	unseling								
	0	No								
	1	1 Yes								
	9	9 Client refused								
Field & Response(s) 6	A cou	rse of further f	ollow-up tr	eatment o	service	es				
	0	No								
	1	Yes								
	9	Client refuse	d							
Field & Response(s) 7	A follo	ow-up meeting uled	or series o	f staff/you	th meet	ings o	r contac	cts has be	en	
	0	No								
	1	Yes								
	9	Client refuse	d							
Field & Response(s) 8	A "pad	kage" of such	things as n	naps, inforn	nation a	about l	ocal she	elters and		
	resou	1								
	0	No								
	1	Yes								
	9	Client refuse	<u>d</u>							
Field & Response(s) 9	Other									
	0	0 No								
	1									
	9	Client refuse	d							
Element Type		am Specific								
Project Type Applicability		ergency Shelt								
	_	insitional Hous								
		omelessness P	revention							
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponen	t			
Component Requested	HUD:0	CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:	HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
·	HUD:I	HUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:	RHSP	RA							
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HC	CHV	EH							
	VA: G	PD	TH							
	VA:SS	VF	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All He	ad of Househo	lds and You	uth						
Collection Point	Projec	t Exit								
System Logic		t once at each		•						
	"proje	ct exit stage"	information	and retair	s for hi	storica	l purpo	se. Upda	tes not	

	required, allow corrections for data entry errors.
Other System Issues	None
XML	<exitplansactions></exitplansactions>
CSV	Exit
Change from 2010 Data	New data element
Standard Notice	

# 4.37 Project Completion Status

Element Name	Proje	Project Completion Status									
Field & Response(s) 1	Proje	ct Completion	Status								
	1	Completed project									
	2	Youth voluntarily left early									
	3	Youth was exp	pelled or ot	herwise inv	oluntar	ily disc	harged	from proj	ect		
Dependent A – Dependent	If You	ıth voluntarily l	eft early fo	r "Project C	omplet	ion Sta	tus"				
to Field & Response(s) 1	Selec	t the major rea	ison								
	1	Left for other opportunities – Independent living									
	2	Left for other	opportunit	ies - Educat	ion						
	3	Left for other	opportunit	ies - Militar	у						
	4	Left for other	opportunit	ies - Other							
	5	Needs could n	ot be met l	by project							
Dependent B – Dependent to Field & Response(s) 1	"Proj	uth was expelle ect Completion	Status"	rise involun	tarily di	ischarg	ed from	project fo	or		
	Select the major reason  1 Criminal activity/destruction of property/violence										
	2	+			City/ Vi	OTCTTCC					
	3	1 ,									
	4	Reached maximum time allowed by project									
	5	Project termin		anowed by	project						
	6	Unknown/disa									
Element Type		ram Specific									
Project Type Applicability		nergency Shelt	er								
, ,, ,, ,,		ransitional Hous									
		Homelessness F									
Funder: Program –		er: Program			Com	ponent	t				
Component Requested	HUD:	:CoC	НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:	:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:	:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD	:HUD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD	:RHSP	RA								
	HHS:	RHY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:	PATH	SO	SSO							

	VA:HCHV	EH						
	VA: GPD	TH						
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH					
Data Collected About	All Head of Househo	olds and Y	outh '					
Collection Point	Project Exit	Project Exit						
System Logic	Collect once at each project exit. System stores collected information as "project exit stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.							
Other System Issues	None							
XML	<projectcompletion< td=""><td>Status&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></projectcompletion<>	Status>						
CSV	Exit							
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element							

## 4.38 Family Reunification Achieved

Element Name	Family	Family Reunification Achieved								
Field & Response(s) 1	Family	Reunification	Achieved							
	0	0 No								
	1	1 Yes								
	8	Client doesn't know								
	9	Client refuse	d							
	99	Data not coll	ected							
Element Type	Progra	m Specific								
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	ergency Shelte	er							
	2 - Tra	nsitional Hous	ing							
	12 - H	omelessness P	revention							
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funde	r: Program			Com	ponent	t			
Component Requested	HUD:0	ЮC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
N/A for blackened	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
components	HUD:F	IOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
	HUD:F	IUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:F	HSP	RA							
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HC	HV	EH							
	VA: GF	D	TH							
	VA:SS\	/F	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	All Hea	ad of Househo	lds and You	uth						
Collection Point	Projec	t Exit								
System Logic		t once at each ct exit stage" i		•					es not	

	required, allow corrections for data entry errors.
Other System Issues	None
XML	<familyreunification></familyreunification>
CSV	Exit
Change from 2010 Data	New data element
Standard Notice	

## HOPWA REQUIRED ELEMENTS

#### 4.39 Medical Assistance

Element Name	Medica	al Assistance
Field & Response(s) 1	Inform	ation Date (date information was collected) [date field]
Field & Response(s) 2	Receiv	ng Public HIV/AIDS Medical Assistance
	0	No
	1	Yes
	8	Client doesn't know
	9	Client refused
	99	Data not collected
Dependent A – Dependent	If No fo	or "Receiving Public HIV/AIDS Medical Assistance"
to Field & Response(s) 2	Reasor	1
	1	Applied; decision pending
	2	Applied; client not eligible
	3	Client did not apply
	4	Insurance type N/A for this client
	8	Client doesn't know
	9	Client refused
	99	Data not collected
Field & Response(s) 3	Receiv	ing AIDS Drug Assistance Program (ADAP)
	0	No
	1	Yes
	8	Client doesn't know
	9	Client refused
	99	Data not collected
Dependent B – Dependent	If No to	"Receiving AIDS Drug Assistance Program (ADAP)"
to –Field and Response(s) 3	Reasor	1
	1	Applied; decision pending
	2	Applied; client not eligible
	3	Client did not apply
	4	Insurance type N/A for this client
	8	Client doesn't know
	9	Client refused

	99 Data not collected										
Element Type	Progra	Program Specific									
Project Type Applicability	1 - Emergency Shelter										
	2 - Transitional Housing										
	3 - PH -	3 - PH - Permanent Supportive Housing									
	6 - Serv	ices Only									
	12 - Ho	melessness	Prevention								
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder	: Program			Com	oonent					
Component Requested	HUD:C	oC .	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:ES	SG .	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:H	OPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:H	UD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:R	HSP	RA								
	HHS:RI	łΥ	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PA	ΛTH	SO	SSO							
	VA:HC	HV	EH								
	VA: GP	D	TH								
	VA:SSV	F	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All hou	sehold mem	bers with H	IV/AIDS							
Collection Point	Project	Entry, Upda	ate and Proje	ect Exit							
System Logic	The system must record the appropriate collection stage for each element.  Systems must also allow for update information if a change occurs mid-year.  Allow corrections for data entry errors at all stages.										
Other System Issues	None										
XML	<medi< td=""><td>calAssistance</td><td>e&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></medi<>	calAssistance	e>								
CSV	Income	Benefits									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New da	ata element									

# RHSP REQUIRED ELEMENT

## 4.40 Worst Housing Situation

Element Name	Worst	Worst Housing Situation						
Field & Response(s) 1	Worst	orst Housing Situation						
	0	No						
	1	Yes						
	8	Client doesn't know						
	9	Client refused						
	99	Data not collected						
Element Type	Progra	Program Specific						

Project Type Applicability	Unknown at time of publication							
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder: Program	Component						
	HUD:CoC	НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH	
	HUD:ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO		
N/A for blackened	HUD:HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH
components	HUD:HUD/VASH	PSH						
	HUD:RHSP	RA						
	HHS:RHY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D	
	HHS:PATH	SO	SSO					
	VA:HCHV	EH						
	VA: GPD	TH						
	VA:SSVF	HP	RRH					
Data Collected About	All Clients							
Collection Point	Project Entry							
System Logic	Collect once at each project entry. System stores collected information as "project entry stage" information and retains for historical purpose. Updates not required, allow corrections for data entry errors.							
Other System Issues	As of the publication of this Data Dictionary RHSP does not have federal funding. Upon receipt of federal funding by HUD for RHSP this element should become active.							
XML	<worsthousingsituation></worsthousingsituation>							
CSV	Enrollment							
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element							

### VA REQUIRED ELEMENTS

#### 4.41 Veteran's Information

Element Name	Veteran's Information			
Field & Response(s) 1	Year Entered Military Service (year)			
Field & Response(s) 2	Year Separated from Military Service (year)			
Field & Response(s) 3	Theatre of Operations: World War II			
	0	No		
	1	Yes		
	8	Client doesn't know		
	9	Client refused		
	99	Data not collected		
Field & Response(s) 4	Theatre of	Operations: Korean War		
	0	No		
	1	Yes		
	8	Client doesn't know		

	9	Client refused			
	99	Data not collected			
Field & Response(s) 5	Theatre of Operations: Vietnam War				
	0	No			
	1	Yes			
	8	Client doesn't know			
	9	Client refused			
	99	Data not collected			
Field & Response(s) 6	Theatre of Operations: Persian Gulf War (Operation Desert Storm)				
	0	No			
	1	Yes			
	8	Client doesn't know			
	9	Client refused			
	99	Data not collected			
Field & Response(s) 7	Theatre of	Operations: Afghanistan (Operation Enduring Freedom)			
	0	No			
	1	Yes			
	8	Client doesn't know			
	9	Client refused			
	99	Data not collected			
Field & Response(s) 8	Theatre of Operations: Iraq (Operation Iraqi Freedom)				
	0	No			
	1	Yes			
	8	Client doesn't know			
	9	Client refused			
	99	Data not collected			
Field & Response(s) 9	Theatre of Operations: Iraq (Operation New Dawn)				
	0	No			
	1	Yes			
	8	Client doesn't know			
	9	Client refused			
	99	Data not collected			
Field & Response(s) 10		Operations: Other Peace-keeping Operations or Military Interventions			
	(such as Lebanon, Panama, Somalia, Bosnia, Kosovo)				
	0	No			
	1	Yes			
	8	Client doesn't know			
	9	Client refused			
E'.1.10 P	99	Data not collected			
Field & Response(s) 11	Branch of the Military				
	1	Army			
	2	Air Force			

	3	Navy									
	4	Marin	es								
	6	Coast	Guard								
	8	Client	doesn't kn	ow							
	9	Client	refused								
	99	Data r	not collecte	d							
Field & Response(s) 12	Discharge S	Status									
	1	Honoi	rable								
	2	Gener	ral under ho	norable con	ditions						
	6	Under	r other than	honorable o	conditions	(OTH)					
	4	Bad co	onduct								
	5	Disho	norable								
	7	Uncha	aracterized								
	8	Client doesn't know									
	9	Client refused									
	99	Data r	not collecte	d							
Element Type	Program Sp	gram Specific									
Project Type	1 - Emerge	ncy She	elter								
Applicability	2 - Transitio	onal Ho	ousing								
	12 - Homel	essnes	s Preventio	า							
	13 - PH - Ra	pid Re	-Housing								
Funder: Program – Component Requested	Funder: Pro	Program Component									
	HUD:CoC		HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:ESG		ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:HOPV		H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:HUD/	VASH	PSH								
	HUD:RHSP		RA								
	HHS:RHY		BCP- es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:PATH		SO	SSO							
	VA:HCHV		EH								
	VA: GPD		TH								
	VA:SSVF		HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All Veteran	S									
Collection Point	Record Cre	ation									
System Logic			•	System store:		d inform	ation. U	pdates no	t		
	-	llow co	rrections fo	r data entry	errors.						
Other System Issues	None										
XML	<veteraninfo></veteraninfo>										
CSV	Client										
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	pertaining	to milit	ary service	ptional Data beyond the unas been reti	universal	Veteran	Status d	ata eleme			
	That Option	ימי שמו	a Liciniciii I	ida Deell Telli	icu, icuel	inica nei	ic to me	CL LITE			

requirements of the VA. Mapping of data from the 2010 element is not required or
recommended.

# 4.42 Percent of AMI (SSVF Eligibility)

Element Name	Perce	Percent of AMI (SSVF Eligibility)									
Field & Response(s) 1	Hous	ehold Income	e as a Perce	ntage of AM	11						
	1	Less than 30	)%								
	2	30% to 50%									
	3	Greater than	n 50%								
Element Type	Progr	ram Specific									
Project Type Applicability	12 - Homelessness Prevention										
	13 - F	PH - Rapid Re	-Housing								
Funder: Program –	Fund	der: Program Component									
Component Requested	HUD:	CoC	HP	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH			
N/A for blackened	HUD:	ESG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO				
components	HUD:	HOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH		
	HUD:	HUD/VASH	PSH								
	HUD:	RHSP	RA								
	HHS:	RHY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D			
	HHS:	PATH	SO	SSO							
	VA:H	CHV	EH								
	VA: G	GPD	TH								
	VA:SS	SVF	HP	RRH							
Data Collected About	All He	ead of House	holds								
Collection Point		ct Entry									
System Logic	"proj	ct once at eage ect entry stag equired, allow	ge" informa	tion and ret	ains for	histor					
Other System Issues	The system may not automatically calculate this field unless the VA Annual Income worksheet is part of the HMIS and the field is calculated from that worksheet. Calculation from Income and Sources is prohibited.										
XML	<pero< td=""><td>centAMI&gt;</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></pero<>	centAMI>									
CSV	Enrol	lment									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New	data element	t								

## 4.43 Last Permanent Address

Element Name	Last Permanent Address
Field & Response 1	Street Address
Field & Response 2	City
Field & Response 3	State

Field & Response 4	Zip Co	de								
Field & Response 5	Addre	ss Data Qual	ity							
	1	Full address	s reported							
	2	Incomplete	or estimate	ed address i	reported	t				
	8	Client does	n't know							
	9	Client refus	ed							
	99	Data not co	llected							
Element Type	Progra	m Specific	Specific							
Project Type Applicability	1 - Em	ergency Shel	lter							
	2 - Transitional Housing									
	12 - Homelessness Prevention									
Funder: Program –	Funde	r: Program			Comp	onent	•			
Component Requested	HUD:C	CoC	НР	PSH	RRH	SO	SSO	TH		
	HUD:E	SG	ES – e/e	ES – nbn	HP	RRH	SO			
N/A for blackened	HUD:F	IOPWA	H/M	HI	PH	PHP	STH	STRMU	TH	
components	HUD:F	IUD/VASH	PSH							
	HUD:R	HSP	RA							
	HHS:R	HY	BCP-es	ВСР-р	MGH	SOP	TLP	D		
	HHS:P	ATH	SO	SSO						
	VA:HC	HV	EH							
	VA: GF	PD	TH							
	VA:SS\	/F	HP	RRH						
Data Collected About	Head	of Househol	d and adults	5						
Collection Point	Projec	t Entry								
System Logic	II .	t once at eac								
		ct entry stag					cal purpo	ose. Upda	ates	
		quired, allow	<i>c</i> orrection	s for data e	ntry erro	ors.				
Other System Issues	None									
XML	<lastpermanentaddress></lastpermanentaddress>									
CSV	Enrollment									
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New d	ata element								

### **Exhibit 4-1 HHS:PATH Program Specific Element Visibility - Collection Requirements**

The elements shown are only those in which least one PATH program component is required to collect information.

X = data collection required

 $\Delta$  = data collection is pending approval; as of publication of the Data Dictionary collection is at the discursions of the grantee

Number	Element	Street Outreach	Services Only
4.1	Housing Status	х	х
4.2	Income and Sources	Δ	Δ
4.3	Non-Cash Benefits	Δ	Δ
4.4	Health Insurance	Δ	Δ
4.5	Physical Disability	х	х
4.6	Developmental Disability	х	х
4.7	Chronic Health Condition	х	х
4.8	HIV/AIDS	Δ	Δ
4.9	Mental Health Problem	х	х
4.10	Substance Abuse	х	х
4.12	Contact	х	х
4.13	Date of Engagement	х	х
4.14 A	Services Provided - PATH Funded	х	х
4.16 A	Referrals Provided - PATH	х	х
4.20	Path Status	х	х
4.21	Connection with SOAR	Δ	Δ

## **Exhibit 4-2 HHS:RHY Program Specific Element Visibility - Collection Requirements**

The elements shown are only those in which least one RHY program component is required to collect information.

X = data collection is required

Number	Element	BCP -es	BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	DEMO
4.2	Income and Sources			х		х	х
4.3	Non-Cash Benefits			х		х	Х
4.4	Health Insurance	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.5	Physical Disability	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.6	Developmental Disability	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.7	Chronic Health Condition	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.9	Mental Health Problem	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.10	Substance Abuse	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.12	Contact				х		
4.13	Date of Engagement				х		
4.14 B	Services Provided - RHY	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.16 B	Referrals Provided - RHY	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.22	RHY:BCP Status	х	х				
4.23	Sexual Orientation	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.24	Last Grade Completed	х	х	х		х	Х
4.25	School Status	х	х	х		х	Х
4.26	Employment Status	х	х	х		х	Х
4.27	General Health Status	х	х	х		х	Х

Number	Element		BCP - p	MGH	SOP	TLP	DEMO
4.28	Dental Health Status	х	х	х		х	х
4.29	Mental Health Status	х	х	х		х	х
4.30	Pregnancy Status	х	х	х	х	х	х
4.31	Formerly a Ward of Child Welfare/Foster Care Agency	х	х	х		х	х
4.32	Formerly a Ward of Juvenile Justice System	х	х	х		х	х
4.33	Young Person's Critical Issues	х	х	х		х	х
4.34	Referral Source	х	х	х		х	х
4.35	Commercial Sexual Exploitation	х	х	х	х	х	х
4.36	Transitional, Exit-care, or Aftercare Plan and Actions	х	х	х		х	х
4.37	Project Completion Status	х	х	х		х	х
4.38	Family Reunification Achieved	х	х	х		х	х

### Exhibit 4-3 HUD: CoC Program Specific Element Visibility - Collection Requirements

The elements shown are only those in which least one CoC program component is required to collect information.

X = data collection is required

\* = data collection is required only for Supportive Services Only components which are funded to provide Street Outreach

? = data collection is determined by how the CoC has structured the coordinated assessment in their area. Placement of the element would be required for any project that is conducting a coordinated assessment. This may be across multiple projects or sited in a central access point or coordinated intake center.

Number	Element	Homelessness Prevention	Permanent Supportive Housing	Rapid ReHousing	Supportive Services Only	Transitional Housing
4.2	Income and Sources	Х	х	х	х	х
4.3	Non-Cash Benefits	Х	х	х	х	х
4.4	Health Insurance	х	х	х	х	х
4.5	Physical Disability	х	х	х	х	х
4.6	Developmental Disability	х	х	х	х	х
4.7	Chronic Health Condition	х	х	х	х	х
4.8	HIV/AIDS	х	х	х	х	х
4.9	Mental Health Problem	х	х	х	х	х
4.10	Substance Abuse	х	х	х	х	х
4.11	Domestic Violence	х	х	х	х	х
4.12	Contact				*	
4.13	Date of Engagement				*	
4.17	Residential Move-in Date			х		
4.18	Housing Assessment Disposition	?	?	?	?	?
4.19	Housing Assessment at Exit	х				

### Exhibit 4-4 HUD: ESG Program Specific Element Visibility - Collection Requirements

The elements shown are only those in which at least one ESG program component is required to collect information.

X = data collection is required

? = data collection is determined by how the CoC has structured the coordinated assessment in their area. Placement of the element would be required for any project that is conducting a coordinated assessment. This may be across multiple projects or sited in a central access point or coordinated intake center.

Number	Element	ESG e/e	ESG nbn	Homelessness Prevention	RRH	Street Outreach
4.2	Income and Sources	х		Х	х	х
4.3	Non-Cash Benefits	х		х	х	х
4.4	Health Insurance	х		х	х	х
4.5	Physical Disability	х	х	х	х	х
4.6	Developmental Disability	х	х	х	х	х
4.7	Chronic Health Condition	х	х	х	х	х
4.8	HIV/AIDS	х	х	х	х	х
4.9	Mental Health Problem	х	х	х	х	х
4.10	Substance Abuse	х	х	х	х	х
4.11	Domestic Violence	х	х	х	х	х
4.12	Contact		х			х
4.13	Date of Engagement		х			х
4.17	Residential Move-in Date				х	
4.18	Housing Assessment Disposition	?	?	?	?	?
4.19	Housing Assessment at Exit			х		

### **Exhibit 4-5 HUD:HOPWA Program Specific Element Visibility - Collection Requirements**

The elements shown are only those in which least one HOPWA program component is required to collect information.

X = data collection is required

Number	Element	Hotel/Motel	Housing Info	Permanent Housing	Permanent Housing Placement	Short Term Housing	STRMU	Transitional Housing
4.1	Housing Status	х	х	х	х	х	х	х
4.2	Income and Sources	х	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.3	Non-Cash Benefits	х	х	х	х	х	х	х
4.4	Health Insurance	х	х	х	х	х	х	х
4.5	Physical Disability	х	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.6	Developmental Disability	х	х	х	х	х	х	х
4.7	Chronic Health Condition	х	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.8	HIV/AIDS	х	х	х	х	х	х	х
4.9	Mental Health Problem	х	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.10	Substance Abuse	х	х	х	х	х	х	х
4.11	Domestic Violence	х	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.14 C	Services Provided - HOPWA	х	х	х	х	х	х	Х
4.15 A	Financial Assistance - HOPWA				х		х	
4.19	Housing Assessment at Exit	х	х	х	х	x	х	X
4.39	Medical Assistance	х	х	х	x	x	х	X

## **Exhibit 4-6 VA Program Specific Element Visibility - Collection Requirements**

The elements shown are only those in which least one VA program component is required to collect information.

X = data collection is required

 $\partial$  = data collection is optional

Number	Element	HCHV/EH	HCHV/RT	HCHV/DOM	HCHV/SH	GPD	CWT/TR	SSVF
4.2	Income and Sources							х
4.3	Non-Cash Benefits							х
4.4	Health Insurance							х
4.14 D	Services Provided – SSVF							х
4.15 B	Financial Assistance - SSVF							х
4.17	Residential Move-in Date							x (RRH only)
4.41	Veteran's Information							х
4.42	Percent of AMI (SSVF Eligibility)							х
4.43	Last Permanent Address							х

#### 5. Metadata Elements

The term *metadata* is often defined as 'data about data.' Instead of capturing information about a project or a client, Metadata Elements capture information about the data itself: when it was collected, when it was entered into HMIS, who entered it, and which project is responsible for it.

The Metadata Elements are intended to facilitate reporting from HMIS, to simplify the writing of programming specifications, and to provide an audit trail. These elements do not represent an attempt to standardize the way that an HMIS stores data. As long as the HMIS is able to accomplish the purposes identified for the Metadata Elements, the software is not required to use the exact metadata elements listed here. Future programming specifications for reports will reference these Metadata Elements. The Metadata Elements are:

5.1	Date Created	5.5	Project Identifier
5.2	Date Updated	5.6	Project Entry Identifier
5.3	Data Collection Stage	5.7	<u>User Identifier</u>
5.4	<u>Information Date</u>		

#### 5.1 Date Created

Element Name	Date Created
Field & Response(s) 1	[date field]
Element Type	Metadata
Project Type	All
Applicability	
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	All Records
Collection Point	Record creation
System Logic	HMIS auto-generated. HMIS must have the ability to identify the date on which a record was first created in HMIS for any client-level data. Data elements that are collected together on a single form may share a single Date Created. HMIS users and system administrators must not have the ability to enter or to modify the information in this Metadata Element.
Other System Issues	The HMIS must store this metadata for all client-level data elements. It is not necessary that this information be displayed in the user interface of the HMIS, but it must be accessible in the programming of reports. Date Created must not change when a data element is edited. If two client records representing the same person are merged, the earliest Date Created must be retained for data elements for which the HMIS stores only one value per client (e.g., name, SSN, date of birth).
XML	XML attribute: DateCreated
CSV	<*> <datecreated> (Field collected across multiple files)</datecreated>
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element.

## 5.2 Date Updated

Element Name	Date Updated
Field & Response(s) 1	[date field]
Element Type	Metadata
Project Type Applicability	All
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	All data elements
Collection Point	Record add / edit
System Logic	HMIS auto-generated. Created by the HMIS when client-level information is first entered, and updated by the HMIS every time client-level information is saved by an HMIS user.
Other System Issues	The HMIS must be able to determine, for all client-level information, the date on which it was last edited by a user. Each time a user saves data, the HMIS must store the current date as the Date Updated with the data being saved. Data elements that are collected together on a single form may share a single Date Updated. HMIS users or system administrators must not have the ability to enter or to modify the information in this metadata element.
XML	XML attribute: DateUpdated
CSV	<*> <dateupdated> (Field collected across multiple files)</dateupdated>
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element.

## **5.3** Data Collection Stage

Element Name	Data Collection Stage		
Field & Response(s) 1	Data collection stage		
	1	Project entry	
	2	Project update	
	5	Project annual assessment	
	3	Project exit	
Element Type	Metadata		
Project Type Applicability	All		
Funder: Program –	All Programs		
Component Requested	All Co	omponents	
Data Collected About	All cli	ent level data	
Collection Point	Client	t Data Entry of Specified Elements	
System Logic	HMIS	auto-generated or HMIS user selected.	
	proje	MIS must be able to distinguish between data collected at project entry, ct update (during enrollment), and project exit.	
	Data	elements that are collected together on a single form may share a single	

	Data Collection Stage.
	HMIS users should not have the ability to create more than one record per data element at either project entry or project exit (e.g., for a single project stay, a client should have one and only one record of Income and Sources identified as project entry).
	The system must allow a user to save a dated record for a client's annual assessment as an "annual assessment".
Other System Issues	The response categories correlate to response categories defined in the XML and CSV specifications.
	An "annual assessment" is required as noted in the collection stage for some Program Specific Elements.
	Elements for which a collection point of 'annual assessment' is required must be collected at least once annually for each client. An Annual Assessment must occur between months 11 and 13 annually for all HUD funded projects. The <i>Information Date</i> must be no more than 30 days before or after the anniversary of the client's <i>Project Entry Date</i> ; information must be accurate as of the <i>Information Date</i> . The date range of the Annual Assessment is based entirely around the client's <i>Project Entry Date</i> , not on the date of the client's previous assessment. For all projects which require an annual assessments, data collected as part of an annual assessment must have a <i>Data Collection Stage</i> of 'annual assessment.' There should be one and only one record for each data element with a <i>Data Collection Stage</i> of 'annual assessment' within the 60 day period surrounding the anniversary of the client's <i>Project Entry Date</i> .  Regardless of whether or not the responses have changed since project entry or the previous annual assessment, a new record must be created for each annual assessment such that it is possible to view a history, by date, of the values for each data element.
XML	XML attribute: DataCollectionStage
CSV	<*> <datacollectionstage> (Field collected across multiple files)</datacollectionstage>
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element.

## **5.4** Information Date

Element Name	Information Date
Field & Response(s) 1	[date field]
Element Type	Metadata
Project Type Applicability	All
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components

Data Collected About	As specified in program specific elements
Collection Point	Client Program-Specific Data Entry
System Logic	This Metadata Element is a hybrid in that it pertains to the client data and not directly to the client, but it will be entered in HMIS by users.
	Throughout the Data Dictionary this Metadata Element has been added to the data elements where it applies (e.g. Income and Sources, with Response 1 Information Date). The metadata element is included here to provide further information for HMIS vendors and system administrators.
	Data that is collected only at initial HMIS project entry (e.g., Name, Social Security Number) does not require an Information Date.
	Data that is collected only at project entry or only at project exit, may be assumed to have an Information Date that matches the Project Entry Date or Project Exit Date, respectively or an HMIS may require that a user specify the date.
	Data elements that are collected together on a single form may share a single Information Date.
Other System Issues	This Metadata Element is applicable to the following Program-Specific Data Elements:  Income and Sources Non-Cash Benefits Health Insurance Physical Disability Developmental Disability Chronic Health Condition HIV/AIDS Mental Health Substance Abuse Domestic Violence Residential Move In Date
XML	XML attribute: InformationDate
CSV	<*> <informationdate> (Field collected across multiple files)</informationdate>
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element.

## 5.5 Project Identifier

Element Name	Project Identifier
Field & Response(s) 1	Project Identifier (2.2) of the project that entered or edited the data
Element Type	Metadata
Project Type Applicability	All

Funder: Program – Component Requested	All Programs All Components
Data Collected About	Specified data elements
Collection Point	Record add and edit
System Logic	HMIS auto-generated or HMIS user selected.  Data elements that are collected together on a single form may share a single Project Identifier. In order to report on data quality on a project's report, it is first necessary to establish that the project in question was responsible for the data.
Other System Issues	This is a basic requirement that assumes a simple relationship between clients and projects. In circumstances where one project may be responsible for entering data that would appropriately appear on another project's required report (e.g., a central intake point), it may be necessary to create a more sophisticated method to establish responsibility for the data entered.
XML	Unique Identifier: ProjectID
CSV	<*> <projectid> (Field collected across multiple files)</projectid>
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element.

## 5.6 Project Entry ID

Element Name	Project Entry ID
Field & Response(s) 1	A unique project entry identifier used to associate data with a particular period of service.
Element Type	Metadata
Project Type Applicability	All
Funder: Program – Component Requested	All Programs All Components
Data Collected About	All client level data
Collection Point	Record add
System Logic	HMIS auto-generated.  The data element should be created by the HMIS at the time that the record of a project entry is first entered into HMIS, and should be stored with any data that pertains to that particular period of service.  Data elements that are collected together on a single form may share a single Project Identifier. An HMIS should be able to correlate data to a specific project stay.
Other System Issues	This metadata element must be stored with the following data elements:

	<ul> <li>Destination</li> <li>Income and Sources</li> <li>Non-Cash Benefits</li> <li>Health Insurance</li> <li>Physical Disability</li> <li>Developmental Disability</li> <li>Chronic Health Condition</li> <li>HIV/AIDS</li> <li>Mental Health</li> <li>Substance Abuse</li> <li>Domestic Violence</li> </ul>
XML	Unique Identifier: ProjectEntryID
CSV	<*> <projectentryid> (Field collected across multiple files)</projectentryid>
Change from 2010 Data Standard Notice	New data element.

## 5.7 User Identifier

Element Name	User ID
Field & Response(s) 1	A unique ID used to associate data with the user who entered and/or edited it
Element Type	Metadata
Project Type Applicability	All
Funder: Program –	All Programs
Component Requested	All Components
Data Collected About	All Records
Collection Point	All Data Entry
System Logic	HMIS generated.
	Each authorized user of an HMIS must have a unique identifier stored in the
	HMIS. Every time data are entered or edited in HMIS, the HMIS must keep a
	record of which user entered or edited the data based on the credentials
	supplied at the time of login.
	The data element should be stored with any Universal or Program-Specific Data Element entered or edited in an HMIS.
Other System Issues	It must be possible to determine, for all client-level data, which user entered it in
Strict System issues	HMIS. Each time a user saves data, the HMIS must store the User Identifier of that particular user with the data being saved.
	Data elements that are collected together on a single form may share a single User Identifier.
	HMIS users must not have the ability to enter or to modify the information in this Metadata Element.
	If a data element is edited, the must retain the original value, along with the
	User Identifier of the user who entered it, in addition to storing the new value
	and the User Identifier of the editing user.
XML	XML attribute: UserID

CSV	<*> <userid> (Field collected across multiple files)</userid>					
Change from 2010 Data	New data element.					
Standard Notice						

## **Exhibit 5-1 Metadata Element Summary**

Data elements collected on a single form / stored as fields in one record of a table may share a single set of metadata.

†Associated with project exit; the information date is the exit date.

Data Element	Date Created	Date Updated	Data Collection Stage	Information Date	Project ID	Project Entry ID	User ID	
Universal Data Elements								
3.1 Name	Х	Х					Х	
3.2 Social Security Number	Х	Х					Х	
3.3 Date of Birth	Х	Х					Х	
3.4 Race	Х	Х					Х	
3.5 Ethnicity	Х	Х					Х	
3.6 Gender	Х	Х					Х	
3.7 Veteran Status	Х	Х					Х	
3.8 Disabling Condition	Х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	Х	
3.9 Residence Prior to Project Entry	Х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	Х	
3.10 Project Entry Date	Х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	Х	
3.11 Project Exit Date	Х	Х	+	+	Х	Х	Х	
3.12 Destination	Х	Х	†	+	Х	Х	Х	
3.13 Personal ID	(An auto-generated component of a client record.)							
3.14 Household ID	(An	(An auto-generated component of an enrollment record.)						
3.15 Relationship to Head of Household	Х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	Х	
3.16 Client Location	Х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	Х	
3.17 Length of Time on the Street, in an ES, or SH	х	Х	*	*	х	Х	Х	
Program-Specific Data Elements								
4.1 Housing status	Х	Х	Х	Х	х	Х	х	
4.2 Income and Sources	Х	Х	Х	Х	х	Х	Х	
4.3 Non-Cash Benefits	Х	Х	Х	Х	х	Х	х	
4.4 Health Insurance	Х	Х	Х	Х	х	Х	Х	

<sup>\*</sup>Associated with project entry; the information date is the entry date.

Data elements collected on a single form / stored as fields in one record of a table may share a single set of metadata.

†Associated with project exit; the information date is the exit date.

Data Element	Date Created	Date Updated	Data Collection Stage	Information Date	Project ID	Project Entry ID	User ID
4.5 Physical Disability	Х	х	х	Х	Х	х	Х
4.6 Developmental Disability	х	Х	Х	Х	х	х	х
4.7 Chronic Health Condition	х	Х	Х	Х	х	х	х
4.8 HIV/AIDS	х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	х
4.9 Mental Health Problem	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
4.10 Substance Abuse	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	х
4.11 Domestic Violence	х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	х
4.12 Contact	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х
4.13 Date of Engagement	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х
4.14 Services Provided	х	Х		Х	Х	Х	х
4.15 Financial Assistance Provided	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х
4.16 Referrals Provided	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х
4.17 Residential Move-In Date	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	х
4.18 Housing Assessment Disposition	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х
4.19 Housing Assessment at Exit	Х	Х	†	†	Х	Х	Х
4.20 PATH Status	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	х
4.21 Connection with SOAR	Х	Х	†	†	Х	Х	Х
4.22 RHY-BCP Status	Х	Х		Х	Х	Х	Х
4.23 Sexual Orientation	х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	х
4.24 Last grade completed	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
4.25 School status	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
4.26 Employment Status	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	х
4.27 General Health Status	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х
4.28 Dental Health Status	х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	х
4.29 Mental Health Status	х	х	Х	Х	х	Х	х
4.30 Pregnancy Status	Х	х	Х	Х	х	Х	х

<sup>\*</sup>Associated with project entry; the information date is the entry date.

Data elements collected on a single form / stored as fields in one record of a table may share a single set of metadata.

†Associated with project exit; the information date is the exit date.

Data Element	Date Created	Date Updated	Data Collection Stage	Information Date	Project ID	Project Entry ID	User ID
4.31 Formerly a ward of child welfare or foster care agency	Х	х	*	*	х	х	Х
4.32 Formerly a ward of juvenile justice system	х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	х
4.33 Young Person's Critical Issues	х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	х
4.34 Referral Source	х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	х
4.35 Commercial Sexual Exploitation	х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	х
4.36 Transitional, Exitcare, or Aftercare Plans and Actions	х	Х	†	†	Х	Х	х
4.37 Project Completion Status	х	Х	†	†	Х	Х	х
4.38 Family Reunification Achieved	х	Х	†	†	Х	Х	х
4.39 Medical Assistance	х	Х	Х	Х	Х	Х	х
4.40 Worst Housing Situation	х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	х
4.41 Veteran's Information	х	Х					х
4.42 Percent of AMI	Х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	Х
4.43 Last Permanent Address	х	Х	*	*	Х	Х	х

<sup>\*</sup>Associated with project entry; the information date is the entry date.